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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Good afternoon. As

          3  most of you I am sure know, I am Kathryn Freed and I

          4  am Chairperson of the Contracts Committee, and I

          5  would like to begin today by recognizing my

          6  colleagues who are present here today.

          7                 To my left we have Council Member

          8  Espada, Council Member Eristoff, who coincidentally

          9  in addition to being on the Committee is the prime

         10  sponsor of the Intro we are going to be looking at

         11  today. Council Member Stephen Fiala, and Council

         12  Member Lopez just stepped out for a minute, she will

         13  be right back, and I expect the rest of the

         14  Committee will be here. Today, like many days, there

         15  are several hearings going on at the same time, so

         16  people will be in and out.

         17                 Anyway, today we will be looking at

         18  Intro. No. 165. This law would require that vendors

         19  under contract with the City of New York represent

         20  that they are in compliance with the

         21  Anti-Discrimination Mandate of the City's Human

         22  Rights Law codified in Title VIII of the

         23  Administrative Code.

         24                 The bill would affect all contractors

         25  and most subcontractors provided that any
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          2  discriminatory practice is directly related to the

          3  performance of the City contract. Title VIII of the

          4  Administrative Code recognizes there is no greater

          5  danger to the health, safety and welfare of the City

          6  and its inhabitants than the existence of groups

          7  prejudice against one another because of their

          8  actual or perceived differences, including those

          9  based on race, color, creed, age, national origin,

         10  alienage or citizenship status, gender, sexual

         11  orientation, disability or marital status.

         12                 Accordingly, Title VIII attempts to

         13  address the existence of prejudice, intolerance,

         14  bigotry, discrimination, bias-related violence or

         15  harassment through the Human Rights Commission,

         16  which is required to ensure that overall

         17  discriminatory practices in the City are prevented.

         18                 Intro. 165 requires that all

         19  contractors doing business with the City not engage

         20  in any unlawful discriminatory practices, as defined

         21  in Title VIII of the Administrative Code in the

         22  performance of duties directly related to a contract

         23  with a particular contracting agency.

         24                 Pursuant to Intro. No. 165, a finding

         25  by the Human Rights Commission that a contractor has
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          2  violated one or more of the City's Human Rights

          3  provisions as provided in Title VIII, so as to its

          4  work subject to the contract with the contracting

          5  agency shall be considered by the City as a material

          6  breach of the contract and the basis for

          7  determination that the contractor be deemed as a

          8  non-responsible bidder for future contracts.

          9                 Let me also state that while Intro.

         10  No. 155 would help in clarifying the City's Human

         11  Rights provisions to contractors doing business with

         12  the City, it has come to the Committee's attention

         13  that some amendments might be necessary. Such

         14  amendments may include:

         15                 (1) a requirement that the Human

         16  Rights Commission first issue a cease and desist

         17  order to a contractor upon a finding of a Title VIII

         18  violation, thereby allowing the contractor to remedy

         19  the situation in a very timely manner.

         20                 (2) include in the role of the Agency

         21  Chief Contracting Officer, known as the ACCO, in

         22  finding the contractor non-responsible if a

         23  contractor has not attempted to remedy a Title VIII

         24  violation.

         25                 Let me just point out for people that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  aren't familiar with all of these terminology of the

          3  Contracts Committee, when we are talking about

          4  material breaches of contract and the basis for

          5  determination of the contractor be deemed as

          6  non-responsible bidder, essentially what we are

          7  talking about are ways to either cancel the contract

          8  and also to keep that bidder from bidding on future

          9  contracts, including the one they are already

         10  involved in.

         11                 Before we hear testimony, let me just

         12  say that we have been joined by Council Member

         13  Quinn. And just one thing before we go, I know that

         14  Council Member Eristoff, the prime sponsor of the

         15  bill, wanted to make a statement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you,

         17  Madame Chair. Thank you for agreeing to hold this

         18  hearing on this bill. I am delighted that we are

         19  going to examine this in greater detail, and I hope

         20  that, frankly, this hearing will provoke a

         21  substantive dialogue on some of the issues, the very

         22  complex issues that this bill touches on.

         23                 The overall message in this

         24  legislation is very, very simple, that we, as a

         25  City, will not tolerate discrimination by those who
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          2  do business with the City, and in fact by virtue of

          3  existing Executive Order 50 and some other statutes

          4  and rules, that is already basically the policy of

          5  the City of New York; however, we are going to

          6  codify Executive Order 50 with this legislation and

          7  then we are going to go a tiny bit further and in so

          8  doing close some loopholes, make the overall

          9  structure of this requirement more accessible, more

         10  easily enforceable, and frankly, try to clean up the

         11  entire landscape so that it is much less confusing

         12  for both City officials and the contractors who have

         13  to deal with these requirements.

         14                 Just on the technical side, it has

         15  been pointed out that Executive Order 50 does not

         16  cover discrimination on the basis of alienage or

         17  citizenship. It also doesn't cover several forms of

         18  discrimination that we now as a matter of public

         19  policy recognize and feel are important.

         20                 For instance, discrimination in the

         21  context of public accommodations in housing, the

         22  sale, rent, lease of land and commercial space,

         23  lending practices, and membership in real estate

         24  multiple listing services.

         25                 We are also going beyond existing
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          2  Executive Order 50 by providing a somewhat different

          3  mechanism for enforcement using the Human Rights

          4  Commission. And your comments, Madam Chair, were

          5  very well taken, I think we will look to amend the

          6  bill to give the City an opportunity to work with

          7  contractors to cure defects for coming down with the

          8  ultimate hammer, which of course is the holding of

          9  non-responsibility and a determination of breach of

         10  contract.

         11                 So, this is a very complex bill on a

         12  relatively simple concept, and I am hoping today,

         13  with the Administration's testimony and with the

         14  questions and answers, we will be able to get to the

         15  bottom of it and come up with something that works

         16  for everybody and with the City.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         19                 Just to follow up a little bit on

         20  that, as we were saying before at the press

         21  conference prior to this time, in effect having a

         22  right without a remedy, if that right is taken away

         23  from you is having no remedy and having no right,

         24  and we would hope that we would solve this where

         25  with the various hierarchies of different state and
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          2  city entities you could go to to try and get a

          3  remedy, and being bounced around, very often many

          4  people we feel will probably lose the energy and do

          5  not pursue trying to remedy some of these

          6  situations, and I guess it is another one of those

          7  justice delayed is very often justice denied, where

          8  too many people may, even though they feel they have

          9  a valid case and they were discriminated against,

         10  can't find which agency to go to or can't just

         11  straightforward get a remedy to that, and I would

         12  hope that this bill would take that up. And we

         13  really do want to address it in the whole question

         14  of contracts, where we feel that by making someone

         15  non-responsive and turning it over to the Agency

         16  Chief Contracting Officer, and the possibility of

         17  debarment from a contract and even future contracts

         18  is a real remedy and puts real teeth into the

         19  legislation and it is a very direct remedy.

         20                 So, having stated that, before we

         21  hear testimony let me just remind everyone that it

         22  is the practice of this Committee to swear in all

         23  its witnesses, so our first witnesses will be the

         24  Mayor's Office of Contracts, Claude Millman.

         25                 And I wanted to just say that we did
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          2  get a statement from Assembly Member Deborah Glick,

          3  which will be made part of the record, in support of

          4  Intro. 165. Oh, she does have a rep here. Okay,

          5  fine. Great.

          6                 If you will raise your right hand.

          7                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: I do.

         10                 MR. SHULTZ: I do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Great.

         12                 Then please state your name and

         13  proceed.

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: Good afternoon. My name

         15  is Claude Millman, I am the Director of the Mayor's

         16  Office of Contracts and the City Chief Procurement

         17  Officer. With me, to my right, is Deputy Director

         18  Harold Shultz. We appreciate the opportunity to

         19  appear before you today.

         20                 Intro. 165 is a bill to amend the

         21  Administrative Code to require that City documents

         22  soliciting bids for proposals, city contracts and

         23  subcontracts entered into by city contractors

         24  include a statement that (1) the contractor will not

         25  engage in an unlawful, discriminatory practice as
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          2  defined in Title VIII of the Administrative Code as

          3  to its work subject to the contract with the

          4  contracting agency.

          5                 (2) a finding by the Human Rights

          6  Commission that a contractor has violated one or

          7  more of the City's Human Rights provisions as

          8  provided for in Title VIII of the Administrative

          9  Code, as to its work subject to the contract with

         10  the contracting agency, shall be considered a

         11  material breach of the contract and the basis for a

         12  determination by the awarding authority that the

         13  contractor is a non-responsible bidder as to all

         14  future contracts.

         15                 The Administration believes that the

         16  City should strive to do business with entities that

         17  possess a high level of integrity, including a

         18  record of compliance with all applicable Human

         19  Rights laws.

         20                 I know that this Committee is also

         21  committed to that goal and that the bill before the

         22  Committee today was introduced in that spirit.

         23  Nevertheless, the Administration opposes the bill

         24  because it does not address any existing problem,

         25  may increase procurement process cycle times, may
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          2  impose unnecessary costs on businesses and may lead

          3  to incorrect legal decisions that restrict the

          4  City's contracting discretion, including the

          5  authority to deny business to firms that unlawfully

          6  discriminate against protected classes.

          7                 The Administration ensures that City

          8  contractors and subcontractors are in compliance

          9  with federal, state and city Human Rights laws in

         10  three separate ways: (1) contractors and

         11  subcontractors are regulated by federal, state and

         12  city Human Rights agencies, must comply with the

         13  Human Rights laws that apply to them, and are

         14  subject to the various enforcement mechanisms that

         15  have been established by legislation.

         16                 (2) The City is authorized under

         17  state law, the City Charter and the City's

         18  Procurement Policy Board rules to deny a proposed

         19  contract to any entity that is not responsible with

         20  respect to the transaction issue, and has

         21  unrestricted authority when dealing with

         22  subcontractors.

         23                 (3) Pursuant to Executive Order 50 of

         24  1980, and the regulations issued by the Division of

         25  Labor Services of the Department of Business
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          2  Services, contractor employment practices are

          3  scrutinized by DOS through an elaborate scheme

          4  involving contractual provisions, contractor

          5  reporting and DLS recommendations.

          6                 I will describe each system in turn.

          7                 The extensive federal and state and

          8  city Human Rights laws that bind all businesses

          9  within those respective jurisdictions, also apply to

         10  City contractors and subcontractors.

         11                 In particular, Title VIII of the

         12  City's Administrative Code states that it is

         13  unlawful to discriminate on the basis of race,

         14  color, creed, age national origin, alienage,

         15  citizenship status, gender, sexual orientation,

         16  disability, marital status, whether children are,

         17  may be or would be residing with a person or a

         18  conviction or arrest record in employment, public

         19  accommodations and the sale and rental of housing,

         20  among other things.

         21                 Title VIII sets forth a broad range

         22  of remedial powers on the part of the New York City

         23  Commission on Human Rights, and gives individual

         24  litigants the right to make a complaint to the

         25  Commission, or if they choose, commence their own
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          2  civil actions in which they may obtain compensatory

          3  and punitive damages, attorneys' fees and injunctive

          4  relief.

          5                 The law provides the City with broad

          6  discretion to deny business to entities that lack

          7  the level of integrity appropriate for an award of

          8  City funds.

          9                 First, while state law requires that

         10  some contracts be awarded to the low bidder, the

         11  apparent low bidder may be denied an award where the

         12  bidder fails to establish that it would be a

         13  responsible contractor.

         14                 This same principle appears in the

         15  City Charter. The PPB rules authorize the City to

         16  deny contracts to non-responsible vendors,

         17  regardless of the type of procurement method used.

         18                 Moreover, where selection decisions

         19  are discretionary, such as in the request for

         20  proposal process, the vendor background may affect

         21  source selection. The law does not restrict the City

         22  with respect to the selection of subcontractors.

         23  Accordingly, the City is free to instruct the

         24  contractor that it may not deal with certain

         25  subcontractors and must rely on a particular
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          2  subcontractor.

          3                 Integrity is a broad and flexible

          4  concept. For example, while an entity may lack

          5  integrity because it has been convicted of a crime,

          6  it may also fail because it has been indicted or has

          7  been under investigation.

          8                 In assessing integrity, the City may

          9  certainly consider adverse determinations issued by

         10  City authorities, but it may also consider the

         11  decision of other governments and even private

         12  entities.

         13                 Improper conduct committed in

         14  connection with a City contract may be relevant to

         15  an assessment of an entity's integrity, but conduct

         16  need not necessarily relate to the City or a

         17  contract in order to be relevant.

         18                 Finally, compliance with applicable

         19  law is important but a vendor may be found to lack

         20  integrity because it has engaged in lawful conduct

         21  that nevertheless reflected poorly on its character.

         22                 In short, in our procurement system

         23  the City has broad discretion to deny a contract or

         24  subcontract to a business that has a poor record

         25  with respect to human rights.
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          2                 While we are not restricted to this

          3  consideration, one factor that is appropriately

          4  evaluated is whether the New York City Commission on

          5  Human Rights has determined that the entity

          6  discriminated against one or more individuals in

          7  violation of Title VIII.

          8                 The City's contract integrity system

          9  successfully considers this information. In fact,

         10  even more extensive information is reviewed before

         11  making contract awards.

         12                 The VENDEX questionnaire that a

         13  prospective City contractor or subcontractor must

         14  complete before obtaining a City contract, require

         15  disclosure of the entities' administrative complaint

         16  record. Moreover, when an individual files a

         17  complaint with the Commission, that fact is included

         18  with the City's VENDEX system. Accordingly, the City

         19  is able to consider the existence of adverse

         20  determination, as well as other negative

         21  information, before entering into a contract with a

         22  vendor.

         23                 In reviewing proposed procurement

         24  actions, my office routinely asks agencies to

         25  explain their procurement decisions notwithstanding
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          2  the existence of adverse information in the VENDEX

          3  system and other databases. In most cases

          4  perspective contractors provide the City with

          5  reasonable grounds to move ahead with a contract

          6  notwithstanding the adverse information.

          7                 For example, the entities such as the

          8  Ft. Green Senior Citizens Council, and the

          9  Neighborhood Defender Services have had complaints

         10  filed against them alleging Human Rights violations.

         11                 However, a review of those cases

         12  showed it was appropriate to continue to contract

         13  with them, notwithstanding the allegations.

         14                 Our system for evaluating vendor

         15  responsibility works particularly well when a

         16  prospective contractor is accused by one or more

         17  individuals of committing a wrong and there is a

         18  significant public interest in the controversy. This

         19  is often the case in the Human Rights area.

         20                 Let me offer an example of our

         21  system's efficiency.

         22                 Approximately one year ago a City

         23  agency proposed to award a contract to a vendor that

         24  had not previously done business with the City. The

         25  incumbent accused the new vendor of violating human
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          2  rights by compelling employees to work in

          3  substandard conditions.

          4                 Some of the incumbent's claims

          5  involved alleged violations of law, but most of the

          6  complaints cited legal but inhumane conduct.

          7                 The incumbent raised these claims in

          8  letters to the agency and asserted them at the

          9  public hearing regarding the proposed contract. The

         10  claims were also reported on by the media.

         11                 The agency took the claims very

         12  seriously, despite the absence of any statutory

         13  scheme regarding inhumane working conditions. Agency

         14  personnel performed site inspections, requested

         15  documents and information from both the incumbent

         16  and new vendor and reviewed all the relevant

         17  information.

         18                 After selecting a contractor, the

         19  agency memorialized its investigation and

         20  conclusions in a recommendation for award which was

         21  submitted to the Office of the Comptroller. The

         22  process worked: When faced with adverse information

         23  regarding a contractor's integrity, the City

         24  searched for the truth, using the

         25  vendor-responsibility system. No special legislation

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  was needed to ensure that this type of adverse

          3  information was considered.

          4                 In the area of Human Rights we

          5  already have an extensive regulatory scheme, it has

          6  been in operation for almost 20 years. Executive

          7  Order 50 and the regulations promulgated thereunder

          8  address the employment practices of City contractors

          9  and subcontractors. Furthermore, every City contract

         10  already spells out the details of Executive Order

         11  50. Our contracts require the contractor to include

         12  the Executive Order 50 provisions in every

         13  subcontract or purchase order of $50,000 or more as

         14  set forth in the rules.

         15                 A failure to comply is deemed a

         16  breach of the contract. But in order to prevent such

         17  breaches from occurring, the City goes through an

         18  extensive effort to prevent discrimination in the

         19  first place. Indeed before a contract is awarded, a

         20  prospective contractor, the entity, must submit an

         21  employment report to DLS. The report consists of

         22  three parts:

         23                 Part 1 requests general information

         24  about the entity, i.e., the names of its officers,

         25  its address, the nature of the contract and the
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          2  contractor, a list of the entities' facilities, the

          3  number of its employees, whether subcontractors are

          4  to be engaged and whether DLS previously reviewed

          5  the entities' employment practices for a prior

          6  contract.

          7                 Part 2 requires the entity to provide

          8  documents regarding its employment policies and

          9  procedures, required documents include its health

         10  and disability policies, employee handbook,

         11  personnel manual, pension plan, application for

         12  employment and evaluation forms, information on

         13  completion of I-9 forms and immigration policies.

         14                 Equal employment opportunity policy

         15  statement, affirmative action plan and a list of any

         16  EEO complaints filed against the entity in the prior

         17  three years.

         18                 Part III requires that entities with

         19  more than 150 employees submit a job classification

         20  data table tracking hiring and terminations for the

         21  prior three years.

         22                 DLS evaluates the entity's

         23  utilization of the available workforce through a

         24  statistical analysis of the entity's employment

         25  history in comparison with DLS' database of
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          2  employment and business sectors broken down by race

          3  and gender classification.

          4                 An entity's employment history is

          5  measured against the mean for that entity's

          6  category. Entities found to be 2.2 standard

          7  deviations from the mean are asked to explain the

          8  variance and may be required to enter a City

          9  employment program to enhance recruitment.

         10                 DLS' staff conducts a thorough review

         11  of all submitted policies and procedures to ensure

         12  they are consistent with the City's Executive Order

         13  50 guideline. If anything is found to be missing or

         14  appears discriminatory, DLS brings the contractor in

         15  for a meeting to explain the problem and requests

         16  that the entity submit changes in its employment

         17  policy.

         18                 For example, an entity must have a

         19  written EEO policy that includes all of the

         20  protected groups the City recognizes or adopt one

         21  prior to payment on their City contract. DLS can

         22  issue a conditional approval for a proposed

         23  contractor that is not entirely in compliance with

         24  the City requirement, with the proviso that

         25  non-compliant items are remedied within 30 days.
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          2                 The contract may be implemented

          3  immediately under a conditional approval.

          4                 DLS can recommend that an agency

          5  suspend or terminate a contract or reduce a

          6  contractor's compensation if after the issuance of a

          7  conditional DLS approval, the appropriate employment

          8  documents are not submitted within 30 days or the

          9  firm fails to cooperate with the City's employment

         10  program.

         11                 Executive Order 50 and the rules

         12  promulgated thereunder authorize DLS to recommend a

         13  non-responsibility finding where an entity

         14  repeatedly fails to comply with the Executive Order.

         15                 Over the past two years or so, the

         16  City has had to suspend payment on only four or five

         17  contracts. To the greatest extent possible, DLS has

         18  to work with contractors to avoid the imposition of

         19  more draconian remedies.

         20                 The extensive system that I have just

         21  described requires no change to ensure that we do

         22  not contract with vendors that the Commission finds

         23  have violated Title VIII in connection with City

         24  contracts.

         25                 In preparation for this testimony we
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          2  reviewed all Commission findings of discrimination

          3  over the past six years. No current City contractor

          4  has a record of such a violation with respect to

          5  work performed on City contracts. Accordingly, the

          6  bill will not redress any existing problem.

          7                 If enacted, however, the bill will

          8  add red tape to an already excessively bureaucratic

          9  procurement process and may therefore lead to an

         10  increase in procurement process cycle times.

         11                 For example, the bill requires that

         12  solicitation documents, not just contracts, include

         13  language regarding compliance with Title VIII. This

         14  requirement runs counter to our recent efforts to

         15  streamline City solicitation documents.

         16                 Moreover, the requirement will slow

         17  down the procurement process. Indeed to ensure

         18  compliance with this law, between the Agency Chief

         19  Contracting Officers and my staff, we will need to

         20  review each solicitation document where mistakes are

         21  discovered, the program staff responsible for the

         22  solicitation will be required to correct the

         23  solicitation through amendments, or where the error

         24  is not discovered in time, resolicit.

         25                 Requirements like this make our
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          2  procurement process slow and cumbersome. The Council

          3  should strive to eliminate the paperwork

          4  requirements in our procurement process, not add to

          5  them.

          6                 The bill may also impose costs on

          7  contractors. Most prudent contractors faced with new

          8  language in a solicitation or a contract referring

          9  to Title VIII of the Administrative Code, will turn

         10  to lawyers with an explanation of what the provision

         11  means and how the newly enacted law differs from the

         12  process that was in effect for over almost two

         13  decades.

         14                 Lawyers will gladly research and

         15  write and bill. The cumulative tab charged by the

         16  lawyers will be passed on to the City. Vendors that

         17  are intimidated by our complex procurement scheme

         18  will simply not compete for our business.

         19                 The bill may also entangle the City

         20  in legal disputes. The unambiguous language of the

         21  bill is not troubling. It neither expands nor

         22  restricts the City's discretion in selecting

         23  contractors. Unfortunately, however, courts may

         24  misread the bill in a manner that restricts such

         25  discretion.
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          2                 First, while the bill authorizes,

          3  rather than require City action, litigants may argue

          4  otherwise. Let us suppose, for example, that a

          5  community-based organization discharges an employee

          6  who successfully establishes to the Commission's

          7  satisfaction that determination was discriminatory.

          8                 After the issuance of that finding,

          9  the board of the community-based organization fires

         10  the wrongdoers and transforms the organization into

         11  a model of compliance with Human Rights laws.

         12                 After considering the violation, the

         13  organization's rehabilitation and the organization's

         14  long history of community service, the City decides

         15  to continue contracting with the organization. An

         16  angry victim of the prior regime, or perhaps a

         17  competitor, sues the City claiming that the City was

         18  required to find the organization in material

         19  breach, deem it non-responsible on all future

         20  contracts, and effectively put it out of business.

         21  Notwithstanding the clear language of the bill to

         22  the contrary, a court agrees. Such a result would

         23  not be good for the City.

         24                 Courts could also erroneously find

         25  that the bill restricts an agency's ability to deny
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          2  business to a human rights violator to a case where

          3  the Commission finds that the entity violated the

          4  Title VIII in connection with that agency's

          5  contract. Under such a mistaken ruling, the City

          6  would be unable to deny business to among others an

          7  entity that (1) is found liable by federal or state

          8  authorities; (2) violated Title VIII, but not in

          9  connection with a City contract; (3) violated Title

         10  VIII in connection with another agency's contract;

         11  (4) has not been found liable but is widely

         12  considered guilty of having engaged in illegal or

         13  wrongful acts. Such an erroneous ruling would also

         14  be contrary to the City's interests.

         15                 While this bill will not advance the

         16  cause of human rights, there is pending before this

         17  Committee proposed legislation that could do so. Our

         18  procurement system can be improved in at least two

         19  ways: make contracting easier for vendors, and

         20  centralize the integrity assessment process.

         21                 I have previously told you of our

         22  efforts to achieve these goals. The bill to raise

         23  small purchase limits and the bill to allow for the

         24  creation of centralized lists of prequalified

         25  vendors will further them. Moreover, they will have
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          2  a positive effect on human rights. New firms,

          3  including minority and women-owned firms, will be

          4  attracted to our business if our procurement process

          5  is simplified. Disreputable firms will be more

          6  easily identified if our integrity assessment

          7  process is more centralized.

          8                 We respectfully submit that the

          9  Committee should join the Administration in

         10  supporting these areas of legislative reform.

         11                 Thank you for affording me the

         12  opportunity to testify today. I would be happy to

         13  answer your questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I want to mention

         15  that we have been joined by Council Members Boyland

         16  and Perkins.

         17                 Andrew and then Chris.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Yes, I have

         19  a number of questions concerning the substance of

         20  your testimony.

         21                 Just one to begin with, it is my

         22  understanding that if the New York City Commission

         23  on Human Rights wishes to enforce against a

         24  contractor or any entity doing business in the City

         25  of New York under the Human Rights Code, they have
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          2  to use the Law Department, they have to work through

          3  the Law Department; isn't that right?

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't know a lot about

          5  the enforcement mechanisms, meaning I guess

          6  collecting money, if that is what you are saying.

          7                 In terms of contracting actions, we

          8  certainly don't need the law Department or courts or

          9  anything, it is the responsibility system that we

         10  can use.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         12                 Do you think that the scheme in this

         13  bill would work effectively or that much more

         14  effectively if we were simply to omit the language

         15  requiring that the solicitation documents, complete

         16  resuscitation?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: That's certainly an

         18  improvement.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Let me just

         20  ask, would you then support the bill, the Mayor's

         21  Office, do you believe, if we took that out?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: I think the other

         23  concerns that we have would still be present but

         24  that would address the first issue that we raised.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. And
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          2  then the other three objections that you raised, two

          3  of them required a mistaken court ruling some time

          4  in the future, so we are working against the

          5  hypothesis, a hypothetical situation that doesn't

          6  now exist. So, you know, it is very hard for us to

          7  counter that kind of hypothetical when it hasn't in

          8  fact happened, and I want to suggest that I think

          9  maybe that is a bit of a stretch.

         10                 And then the other substantive

         11  objection is that lawyers will get involved -- well,

         12  aren't lawyers already involved? If you look at the

         13  current requirements, we have got the state labor

         14  law, we have got the New York City administrative

         15  code, Title VI, we have got Executive Order 50, we

         16  have got the McBride Principles, we have got the

         17  Americans With Disabilities Act, all of those come

         18  into play, right?

         19                 So, how much extra lawyer time do you

         20  think this would actually impose as a practical

         21  matter?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: Every time one of those

         23  things emerges, I suspect that what goes on,

         24  certainly if I were in private practice in making

         25  money, my plan would be to write to my clients and
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          2  offer them, you know, an opinion for a fee, and it

          3  is the adding on of a new one. And obviously, you

          4  know, whenever there is new legislation there are

          5  going to be those kinds of costs, but what one has

          6  to ask for himself is how those costs work, are we

          7  getting something for those costs? And if there was

          8  some advancement that one were going to get in the

          9  human rights area, then one might say, well, okay,

         10  so let's say City costs are going to increase by say

         11  one percent --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Well, see,

         13  to my mind actually I don't really believe there

         14  would be much extra cost, and I also think that

         15  ultimately the whole system, the whole scheme could

         16  be arguably much simpler, because right now, as I

         17  said, we have a number of different sources of law

         18  and guidance on this and it is very, very confusing.

         19                 Let me just turn to some other

         20  technical features.

         21                 Executive Order 50 does not now cover

         22  alienage and citizenship. These are classifications

         23  that have only recently become recognized as

         24  important foci of public policy.

         25                 Are you suggesting that the City, in
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          2  order to avoid having this bill become law maybe

          3  should update Executive Order 50 and now include

          4  alienation citizenship?

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: That could be done,

          6  although I think that is unnecessary because we are

          7  already dealing with the issue. The contracts, our

          8  contracts contain a compliance with all laws section

          9  as standard, as a standard provision.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, but I

         11  mean the DLS procedure that you just described, very

         12  elaborate, has to do with employment discrimination.

         13  It doesn't cover other forms of discrimination, as I

         14  said in my opening statement. For instance, public

         15  accommodations, housing, lending, sale, rent, lease

         16  of land or public, commercial space. I mean, why

         17  not, you know that DLS process doesn't cover those

         18  categories.

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: But really the bill is

         20  very simple. The bill says that if the Human Rights

         21  Commission, I mean he meat of the bill, the Human

         22  Rights Commission makes a finding against somebody,

         23  that they violated Title VIII. Then we are supposed

         24  to, the City is supposed to consider that finding

         25  and take an appropriate action, maybe terminate the
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          2  contract.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: You heard

          4  the chair specifically say in her opening statement

          5  that we were going to make an amendment to the bill

          6  to create some intermediary process --

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: That falls

          9  short of holding someone in material breach or

         10  holding them non-responsible.

         11                 And I think it is appropriate and I

         12  think you gave a consensus there.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. And I think

         14  that, as I mentioned, the cease and desist to in

         15  fact cover one of the hypotheticals that you came up

         16  with because what we are really interested in doing

         17  is remedying the situation and stopping the

         18  discrimination, and we are not interested in putting

         19  any company out of business, particularly if they

         20  are a good company, and that would allow that and

         21  that would be a very direct, very quick way of

         22  addressing the problem.

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: I think the bill does

         24  not need to be amended to deal with that in a sense

         25  that the bill simply says, it doesn't say that when
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          2  there is a finding we must hold someone

          3  non-responsible, and it doesn't say that when there

          4  is a finding we must terminate the contract, it

          5  simply authorizes us to do that. So, those are

          6  things that we can already do.

          7                 So, I guess what I am saying is that

          8  if there were a finding, then what we would do is we

          9  would look at that information and try and figure

         10  out how should we deal with it. Obviously the first

         11  thing we do whenever we get adverse information,

         12  just about I guess, not always, but actually when we

         13  get adverse information about a contractor we write

         14  to the contractor and we say we have heard of

         15  adverse information. You know, tell us what should

         16  happen in connection with this adverse information,

         17  and the contractor may say that was an unfortunate

         18  incident but we have taken all of these steps since

         19  then and we are prepared to take more steps and they

         20  respond very reasonably and that is the end of the

         21  story.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am sorry, could

         23  you clarify that? When you say we, who is we? I

         24  mean, how do you determine who actually makes that

         25  decision?
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          2                 And for instance, if you are telling

          3  me that it's either PPB or MOC, then I guess my

          4  question is, is that the appropriate agency, or do

          5  you have to go to the City Commission on Human

          6  Rights?

          7                 I mean right now it seems to us

          8  because there is the confusion, because you could go

          9  to the City Commission on Human Rights, could go to

         10  DBS, could go to the Department of Labor, you could

         11  go to MOC, it would seem that if we have one very

         12  specific pathway that says if you feel there is

         13  discrimination, this is what you do and this is what

         14  can be done about it, it would in the longrun be

         15  better for everyone, including, by the way, getting

         16  rid of all of those additional lawsuits or putting

         17  lawyers, heaven for fen, to giving them extra

         18  business because if it is there and it is very

         19  clear, it seems to us right now you do have a kind

         20  of a mish-mosh of different agencies that you can go

         21  to, but if there is a very clear pathway, this is

         22  how you do it, if you think there is discrimination

         23  you can do this, then A, B or C will happen, it

         24  seems to me that that actually clarifies it, which

         25  is exactly what we have been trying to do with a lot

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  of the City contracts and just make it very

          3  straight, without questions about can we do this or

          4  that, clear up the loopholes and get rid of any

          5  uncertainties.

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: There are two separate

          7  issues. Issue number one is, what does a victim of

          8  discrimination do in order to get a remedy, and the

          9  human rights laws deal with that, you can go to the

         10  City Commission, you can go to other jurisdictions

         11  commission, you can go to court and bypass the

         12  commission and seek some sort of remedy.

         13                 You can also, obviously make hey

         14  about it in various ways. You can go to the media.

         15  If you know, you know, whether you are dealing with

         16  an entity that does business with the City or not,

         17  you could go to the clients of that entity, if it is

         18  an entity that does business with the City you can

         19  write to the City and say, you know, I am outraged

         20  of what they did to me, you should consider this

         21  information.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But then where

         23  does it go? I think that was my question. And who

         24  makes the determination?

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: There is a separate
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          2  question which is, how does the City in its

          3  contracting determinations, gather up all of the

          4  adverse information about a contractor, consider

          5  that information and make the right contracting

          6  decisions. And basically the system we have for that

          7  is the VENDEX system. With step one being the VENDEX

          8  form that says tell me of all, you have to report to

          9  me all sorts of information, and then after that we

         10  have a VENDEX database where we input adverse

         11  information. So, for instance, every time someone is

         12  going and making a complaint to the Human Rights

         13  Commission, that is going into the VENDEX system. So

         14  when the Agency Chief Contracting Officer is about

         15  to enter into a contract with a vendor, and they

         16  type in the name of that vendor, up will come

         17  information either from the VENDEX form or from the

         18  Human Rights Commission that the Agency Chief

         19  Contracting Officer will know that someone has

         20  complained to the Human Rights Commission.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. I mean, the

         22  first question there is they may have complained of

         23  the Human Rights Commission, that may raise a red

         24  flag, that doesn't mean there was finding of

         25  discrimination.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: That's right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But let me just go

          4  beyond that, because you and I both know a lot of

          5  these things don't show up in VENDEX, too many times

          6  things don't get filed in VENDEX and too many times

          7  someone who is guilty of discrimination or something

          8  else certainly isn't going to put it in a VENDEX

          9  form saying, oh, yes, by the way we did

         10  discriminate. And a lot of these things, even by the

         11  ACCOs of the different agencies never get filed. I

         12  mean time and time again in this Committee we have

         13  heard of instances where things just don't get filed

         14  and don't get printed out in VENDEX.

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: While the VENDEX system

         16  may be imperfect in some ways, actually in the Human

         17  Rights area it seems to be very effective. Because

         18  as I said, actually there are a lot of complaints in

         19  the VENDEX system regarding discrimination and when

         20  we check to see whether we have missed any findings,

         21  whether we are entering into any contracts with

         22  vendors who have findings, we found that we haven't.

         23  Which I think if you compare that to any other area

         24  outside of human rights, I think you would find we

         25  probably do make mistakes. We seem to be doing a
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          2  good job in the human rights area, probably I think

          3  because contractors are reporting the fact that

          4  complaints have been issued against them, most of

          5  them, I think they are easier to explain that they

          6  have a complaint than why they didn't report it, I

          7  suspect is one of the reasons they are reporting it,

          8  and I guess Human Rights is doing a good job of

          9  making sure the information comes to us, and overall

         10  the information is available. We are not -- a lack

         11  of information is not a problem in this area for

         12  whatever reason.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And how often do

         14  you actually deny contracts because of that? Do you

         15  have any figures for us? And the basis on which

         16  whatever the complaint was?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, actually I think

         18  it seems from my quick review of what the Human

         19  Rights Commission is doing, is there haven't been a

         20  lot of findings against the kinds of entities that

         21  we contract with. Actually it seems like a lot of

         22  the findings were against the City. But the problem

         23  doesn't seem to -- we don't have in the -- I guess

         24  we are talking about the construction firms and

         25  not-for-profit, for whatever reason we don't seem to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  be seeing a lot of adverse findings in that area.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Is that possibly

          4  because people don't realize there is a remedy

          5  there? I mean, if they don't know about it, or if

          6  they don't feel that they are going to get action on

          7  it, they may not be filing.

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: I guess I don't see how

          9  the bill would address that issue. Certainly one

         10  might want to --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, there is a

         12  certain posting bill that I have been trying to get

         13  through Human Rights for, I don't know, four years

         14  that would require posting of all the Human Rights

         15  protections at the obvious places.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I just had

         17  one other technical question about Executive Order

         18  50.

         19                 It is my understanding that 50 covers

         20  all contractors and all levels of subcontractors,

         21  but only for construction and first level

         22  contractors for supply and service contracts. That

         23  kind of leaves out a group.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Are you
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          2  telling us that the current DLS process covers all

          3  of the people left out, all of the subcontractors

          4  are not covered by Executive Order 50? I mean, why

          5  isn't it time to codify and clarify Executive Order

          6  50, bring it up to date, because it was first

          7  issued, as you know, in 1980, it hasn't been

          8  amended, in fact it was the subject of a court case,

          9  provisions were overturned and arguably reaffirmed

         10  later, but, you know, it is still out there; why not

         11  codify it now and bring it up to date and at least

         12  bring it into conformity with your current practice

         13  and maybe fill in some of the gaps along the way?

         14  For instance, discrimination in the realms of

         15  housing and sale, rent, lease of public, land and

         16  the like, lending?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: I guess the question is,

         18  what kind of return do you get for your risk.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: But what is

         20  the risk?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: I think the risks are,

         22  and I realize you consider them hypothetical,

         23  unfortunately I have seen it happen too many times.

         24  I think a major risk is that while this Committee

         25  will say all we are doing is describing current law,
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          2  all we are doing is authorizing the City to do

          3  things, we are not restricting its discretion in any

          4  way.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We intend to

          6  change that by the way.

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay, well, then there

          8  would be a different concern if it were restricting

          9  executive authority.

         10                 However, if a court were to hold that

         11  executive authority is limited, then that could hurt

         12  us both in terms of enforcing human rights

         13  violations, or in dealing with, entering into

         14  contracts with vendors that are good.

         15                 So, for example, I guess my concern

         16  is, and I realizing you are saying --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I am sorry,

         18  I just don't -- we are going to have to agree to

         19  disagree on this one.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: Read the Hannoch

         21  Decision and ask yourself whether or not a court

         22  held there something that is different than what the

         23  City intended, and I think you will see that it is

         24  not at all uncommon.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: If the court
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          2  misconstrues the law, then it is the job of the

          3  legislature to amend the law.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right. And in

          5  fact, you already have a decision under Executive

          6  Order 50 in the past under Mayor Koch that said that

          7  the Mayor couldn't through Executive Order cover

          8  certain groups in that case, including sexual

          9  orientation because it wasn't at that time covered

         10  under the City's Human Rights law. So, it is sort of

         11  ludicrous to assume that they would find a different

         12  decision now for certain things that aren't covered

         13  under Executive Order 50.

         14                 I am sorry, Chris.

         15                 Just one question I had was, you

         16  mentioned in your statement about Executive Order 50

         17  does not cover contracts or purchase orders under

         18  $50,000, now is that because of small purchase, or

         19  is that just --

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: I think that is what the

         21  Executive Order states. So, actually the Executive

         22  Order allows --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Fifty-thousand or

         24  does it say small purchase limits?

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: No. It doesn't link to
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          2  small purchases, no.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I just wanted to

          4  clarify that.

          5                 Okay, Chris.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 So I just want to understand this: We

          8  have no real problem with these human rights

          9  infractions in the City, right? That is what you are

         10  saying. But yet simultaneously, even though we have

         11  no problem, big problems, we cannot change the law

         12  because that would cause a tremendous amount of

         13  lawsuits over the non-existing problems; is that

         14  right?

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay, so

         17  clarify that for me.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: What I said was, the

         19  bill address a specific type of finding. It says if

         20  the Human Rights Commission finds that a contractor

         21  violated Title VIII in connection with a contract,

         22  then we have the authority to take certain legal

         23  action. And what I am saying is that when we

         24  searched we could not find any case, any instance,

         25  where such a finding was made against any of our
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          2  current contractors. So that is that issue.

          3                 The second issue is --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I just say,

          5  I find that -- if you say that is what your review

          6  found then I believe that, I find it unbelievable,

          7  and I am quite frankly shocked that the Mayor's

          8  Office would accept that information as it is, that

          9  that is actually the fact of what is happening in

         10  companies in the City of New York.

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: They may be violating

         12  human rights, that I am not saying. And in fact,

         13  they may be -- I mean, there are lots of things the

         14  bill does not deal with, it deals with a very, very

         15  narrow point.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But yet you say

         17  we don't need the bill because you did a review and

         18  the review yielded no problem, but you just said in

         19  agreement with me that probably there are more

         20  problems than your review could have yielded for the

         21  reason that Chairperson Freed mentioned and others,

         22  but yet that doesn't change your perspective?

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: If someone has an issue

         24  with a particular contractor, and if any individual

         25  could say there is a contractor that the City does

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  business with and they don't comply with human

          3  rights obligations in some way, be it legal

          4  obligation, or a moral obligation, the best way of

          5  dealing with that problem is for that individual,

          6  and besides suing or bringing an action on their own

          7  behalf, is for that individual to go to the agency

          8  and basically do two things, notify the agency of

          9  the problem, and also there is probably going to be

         10  a public hearing concerning that contract, go to the

         11  public hearing and raise the issue, which is what

         12  has happened typically. If you have got a problem

         13  with the vendor saying don't give money to this, to

         14  my former employer, they fired me and they are

         15  outrageous.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Let's say that

         17  I am someone who has newly come into this country,

         18  and I am nervous about citizenship issues or

         19  whatever or I just don't feel comfortable going down

         20  to a public hearing which may in fact be in this

         21  building, which we can all attest to the fact it is

         22  not easy to get into, so we are saying that person

         23  should come down here and testify.  They have

         24  recently come to this country, they may be nervous

         25  in front of a government body, they have no
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          2  knowledge or understanding of, because most native

          3  New Yorkers don't understand the contract process,

          4  probably a lot of City Council members don't

          5  understand the contract process, so you know, what

          6  this body is. So you are saying that individual,

          7  that hypothetical individual, should come down and

          8  testify. Or you are saying that someone who is not

          9  out of the closet and is having a problem where they

         10  work, just as the person who has come to this

         11  country, that person who is nervous about their

         12  citizenship status, or nervous about their sexual

         13  orientation, is supposed to come to City Hall, if

         14  they can get in after explaining to the police

         15  officer why they are here and that they are gay or a

         16  new citizen and must go in and testify to this, that

         17  they should come and make that clear at the public

         18  hearing - I think that is onerous. You don't find

         19  that is an unrealistic proposition and an absurd

         20  burden to put on people?

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, first of all, the

         22  bill merely says that if --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But answer what

         24  you said. You said that the remedy would be to come

         25  to a public hearing.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: That is one remedy.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Answer my

          4  question. Do you think that is a satisfactory

          5  remedy? Given the three categories of people that we

          6  are talking about? Yes or no?

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: I think it is a remedy,

          8  it is not the only one.

          9                 For example --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you think it

         11  is satisfactory?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: Let me finish.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you think it

         14  is satisfactory?

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: They could write an

         16  anonymous letter, for example.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just answer the

         18  question. Do you think it is a satisfactory remedy?

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: I think it is a, one of

         20  many, many remedies, and it is a good one obviously

         21  not for the classes that you describe.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But that is

         23  what this bill is about.

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: I am sorry?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That is what
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          2  this bill is about. We are talking about --

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: No, no. It is no. That

          4  is not what this bill is about.

          5                 The bill deals with situations where

          6  a person is willing to go to the Human Rights

          7  Commission and get a finding, a public finding of

          8  discrimination, and based on that public finding of

          9  discrimination, the agency is supposed to have the

         10  authority, has the authority to take contract

         11  action. That is all the bill is about. And that is

         12  something that happens right now, you don't need the

         13  bill to do it, that is certainly a remedy that we

         14  have.

         15                 There are many, many other remedies

         16  available, but that is what this bill does, it

         17  doesn't do much.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But it has

         19  engendered so much opposition.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: That's the problem.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: In your

         22  testimony, and in fact you have made comments like

         23  this at other Contracts Committee hearings, and I

         24  believe the last hearing we had about the problems

         25  with the giving out of the social service contracts
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          2  I raised my objection to the categorization of human

          3  rights laws in this manner, but I will do it again.

          4                 In your testimony today and that day

          5  you make reference to, you know, human rights

          6  initiatives being passed or implemented but having

          7  to weigh the cost. You referenced someone needing to

          8  go to the press or even the public hearing that you

          9  just mentioned as making hey. You talked about the

         10  cost in lawsuits, et cetera as it relates to passage

         11  of human rights laws.

         12                 I want to say again that I don't

         13  think that that is -- I find that an offensive scale

         14  of judgment, that we should not be deciding how much

         15  human rights laws cost, or how much we will spend on

         16  them. It seems to me that that is degrading to the

         17  concept of human rights laws and to the categories

         18  of people who seek protections in those laws. So,

         19  could you please clarify for me what you -- if that

         20  is not what you mean and is not what you meant at

         21  the other hearing, please clarify for me what you

         22  mean and on what scale of cost are you judging this

         23  bill?

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: I think you

         25  misunderstood me. But what I do mean is that when
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          2  you look at any piece of legislation, and in fact

          3  when you look at any change, you have to ask

          4  yourself what am I getting and how much is it going

          5  to cost. In this instance we are getting absolutely

          6  nothing, in no way is the City's authority to deal

          7  with human rights violations increased one iota.

          8  Therefore, if there is any cost, it is an expensive

          9  one.

         10                 Obviously human rights is a very

         11  important value. We already do an extensive amount

         12  to address it. Right now we have a system that

         13  collects information about human rights violations,

         14  about records with respect to human rights

         15  violations and we consider the information.

         16                 We consider not only findings, we

         17  consider complaints of human rights violations. And

         18  after looking at that information we make contract

         19  decisions. If there was some potential improvement

         20  of the system, I can understand a cost, but with no

         21  improvement you are simply -- the cost is this: The

         22  cost is that minority-owned and women-owned

         23  businesses end up getting a more complicated

         24  procurement system, and therefore, they get further

         25  shut out of the procurement system. I think that is
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          2  a factor that you always have to consider, all the

          3  paperwork involved in all of these changes seems

          4  like the Council never considers and that is very

          5  disturbing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, I don't

          7  think that is true, and I think that one part of

          8  your testimony where you talk about other pieces of

          9  legislation that we could work on to streamline

         10  systems I think should be happening, you know,

         11  hand-in-hand, and having been an executor of a

         12  non-profit organization I certainly would love to

         13  sit down with you and, as I have offered before,

         14  give you my thoughts on how to streamline the

         15  system.

         16                 How many contracts is the City of New

         17  York engaged in with entities who are based outside

         18  of the five boroughs?

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't have that

         20  information, but I am sure there are many.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Could you get

         22  me that?

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: I am wondering if even

         24  that is information that we --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, let me
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          2  tell you what --

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: It is difficult to

          4  figure out exactly what the parameters would be.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You are aware

          6  of the fact that the Human Rights law, that there is

          7  no lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender human

          8  rights law in the State of New York?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: I am not in particular

         10  expert on the field, no.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So you are not

         12  aware. You, prior to this hearing, believed that we

         13  had a gay rights bill in the State of New York?

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: No. I guess I have read

         15  the City statute and I know that it deals with gay

         16  rights.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. Well, let

         18  me clear it up for you as a director of an office in

         19  the City of New York, there is no gay rights bill in

         20  the State of New York.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Or the federal

         23  government.

         24                 So, I work for -- well, in my

         25  district we just finished Gertrude Kelly Park on
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          2  17th Street, and that park was rehabilitated by a

          3  contractor who was based in Linbrook, in Nassau

          4  County on Long Island. If that contractor

          5  discriminated against me because I am a lesbian, but

          6  there is no provision in Nassau County to protect me

          7  because I am a lesbian, and that company is

          8  contracted with the City of New York, what powers

          9  does the City now have, or what potential is there

         10  for me to get redress and for that company to either

         11  be issued a cease and desist order or terminated or

         12  whatever is appropriate, this Nassau-based company

         13  that is engaged with the City of New York?

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: I think right now we

         15  have the authority to deal with that situation. My

         16  concern is that although the bill certainly --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I am sorry, you

         18  think we, clarify the "think" and who is the "we".

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: Sure. The City currently

         20  has the authority to deal with the situation that

         21  you described, and I will explain that in a moment.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great.

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: I believe the bill does

         24  not address that situation at all. However, my

         25  concern would be that a court would incorrectly
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          2  interpret the bill as restricting our ability and

          3  eliminating our ability to deal with that situation.

          4  Let me explain.

          5                 First, right now, as I have described

          6  our responsibility system, we can consider any

          7  adverse information that bears on a contractor's

          8  integrity in determining whether or not that

          9  contractor is responsible.

         10                 Whether or not a contractor on Long

         11  Island has engaged in illegal conduct, if it is

         12  conduct that the City believes is wrong, then we

         13  would certainly be within our authority to find the

         14  contractor not responsible.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Illegal in what

         16  jurisdiction? The jurisdiction it is based in or in

         17  the City of New York's definition of illegal?

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: I am saying legality

         19  does not matter.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay? For example, we

         22  regularly find, we sometimes find contractors not

         23  responsible because they associated with an

         24  organized crime figure. It is not illegal to spend

         25  time with an organized crime figure, notwithstanding
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          2  that we can say we are not going to do business with

          3  you because your president spent time with an

          4  organized crime figure.

          5                 Similarly we can say in Long Island

          6  you engaged in conduct that is legal there but not

          7  conduct that we approve of, and therefore we find

          8  that you are not a responsible contractor.

          9                 That is our current authority. It is

         10  the authority we have under the state law through

         11  the responsibility notion, the Charter's reference

         12  to responsibility and the PPB rules reference to

         13  responsibility.

         14                 However, now, the bill doesn't deal

         15  with that at all. Because all the bill says is that

         16  if you violate Title VIII, and I don't know whether

         17  Long Island businesses can violate Title VIII and I

         18  wouldn't go into that issue because I am not an

         19  expert on Title VIII, but let's assume for the sake

         20  of argument that a Long Island business does not

         21  violate Title VIII. If that were the case, then

         22  there could not be an adverse commission finding and

         23  therefore the bill would not kick in.

         24                 However, if a court, as I said in my

         25  testimony, if a court were to say that what this
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          2  bill means is the only time you can find someone not

          3  responsible on the basis of a Human Rights violation

          4  is when the Commission finds, makes a determination

          5  that you violated Title VIII in connection with a

          6  contract and we are sunk. We have lost a major

          7  component of our responsibility determination, and

          8  this would be particularly bad, because, for

          9  instance, let's say a gay rights group had to write

         10  us and say you should know that a Long Island

         11  business is discriminating if after such an

         12  erroneous court ruling we would have no authority to

         13  deal with that situation, if that decision were

         14  upheld.

         15                 And I realize, yes, the Council could

         16  come in and fix it, however, there is a lot of

         17  legislation that has been pending before the Council

         18  that doesn't move and therefore I would rather not

         19  tamper with a good law.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am sorry. You

         21  know, you know you just in your statement took

         22  almost three pages to talk about the entire system,

         23  but we are trying to put one small, very direct bill

         24  in, but what really makes me nervous is what you

         25  were just talking about and how you, meaning the
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          2  Administration or the City can decide what is

          3  responsive and what is not and give yourself a lot

          4  of leeway, which in one hand I can see where having

          5  a lot of leeway could be good if you are going after

          6  the wrong-doer, but I can also see where it can be

          7  really problematic if you just don't happen to like

          8  someone. Because what bothers me is, from what you

          9  are talking about, your definition of what is

         10  responsive is very nebulous and I am really worried

         11  about this whole system being thrown out, having

         12  listened to you because, and thinking of the Diamond

         13  Asphalt case, which while it talked about

         14  aggregating contracts, what that turned on was the

         15  Mayor saying that we have a bypass authority because

         16  we can determine who was responsive and who wasn't,

         17  or responsible and who wasn't. And if a court in

         18  that decision found that to be basically vague or

         19  that the Mayor didn't have that much flexibility or

         20  that much room to make those decisions or it was too

         21  vague or it wasn't hinged on something, I am now

         22  worried that this entire system that we have been

         23  talking about today, without the bill that we are

         24  proposing, and, yes, we are going to clarify it a

         25  little, but that whole system could potentially be
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          2  thrown out because you have just given the

          3  Administration, in whatever different form, or

          4  agency you used, an immense amount of very vague

          5  power, especially considering that you already had a

          6  court that said under Executive Order 50 the

          7  executive could not legislate on these, I mean you

          8  had a decision that already said that.

          9                 So, I mean I have to say sitting here

         10  listening to you today, the one thing you have

         11  convinced me of is how important it is that we

         12  clarify this and that we get a bill like this passed

         13  with some clarification.

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: You misunderstand. Let

         15  me --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I don't think so,

         17  and I think we are going to disagree on this one.

         18                 MR. MILLMAN: Let me explain. You have

         19  to go back and read Diamond Asphalt apparently.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I know, we were

         21  just talking about that. But I did, and I know the

         22  major thing was they said that we award the lowest

         23  responsible bidder and you can't aggregate the

         24  contract. But if you actually read the Court's

         25  decision, it very much talks about the
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          2  Administration not having the wide open power that

          3  it claimed.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: No, let me explain,

          5  okay?

          6                 The settled state law that everyone

          7  goes by that no one questions, because it is not the

          8  issue that was in Diamond Asphalt, it's a state law,

          9  Diamond Asphalt involved a City law -- but the state

         10  law says that you must award to the lowest

         11  responsible bidder. Responsible is a very long

         12  established, admittedly murky concept, but it is a

         13  state law concept. And what the state law said is

         14  that you don't have to award to the lowest

         15  responsible bidder, what the State Court said in

         16  Diamond Asphalt -- well, I am sorry, the state law

         17  says you don't have to award to the lowest

         18  responsible bidder if you have a statute that

         19  existed prior to 1953 or whatever it was, that dealt

         20  with that situation.

         21                 The City does have such a law, the

         22  Charter, and the Charter said in addition to being

         23  able to find someone not responsible, the Mayor can

         24  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There were --
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: I am sorry?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There were major

          4  changes in our Human Rights law since then.

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: Right, and that was the

          6  --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And that is

          8  exactly why the Court found the way it did under

          9  Mayor Koch when he tried to read in sexual

         10  orientation.

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: The clause, the 1953

         12  clause, the 1953 clause, the predating clause,

         13  doesn't deal with the issue of responsibility. All

         14  jurisdictions deal with contracts in New York State,

         15  get to make a decision about whether or not a

         16  contractor is responsible or not. Diamond Asphalt

         17  merely said that the Charter, the 1980 Charter

         18  basically disrupted that flow from 1953, and since

         19  the Charter -- we don't get the responsibility

         20  directly from, immediately from the Charter, we get

         21  the best interest -- I am sorry, it's the mayoral

         22  bypass from the Charter. The mayoral bypass is gone,

         23  the responsibility is still there, there is no risk

         24  to responsibility whatsoever.

         25                 Now, when you say it is a flexible
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          2  concept, yes. However, the way that it works, it is

          3  rather protective. I will describe it.

          4                 First, in our system typically the

          5  Agency Chief Contracting Officer makes a

          6  determination of responsibility. Then if that is not

          7  acceptable to the contractor they can appeal that to

          8  the agency head. If they are not satisfied with that

          9  decision they can appeal that to the City Chief

         10  Procurement Officer.

         11                 If they are not satisfied with that,

         12  they can go to court and argue that it is arbitrary

         13  and capricious under the Article 78 standard. So,

         14  there is actually a lot of process that you get in

         15  the responsibility standard. There is no --

         16  obviously it is somewhat discretionary as to what

         17  constitutes integrity, that is a very broad notion,

         18  and two people can differ about what integrity

         19  means, that notwithstanding that there is a lot of

         20  process.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: If I may just

         22  add one thing?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Go ahead, Council

         24  Member Lopez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.
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          2                 I began supporting this bill, I did

          3  not sign into this bill to be a sponsor, because I

          4  felt at the time there was no need for me to sponsor

          5  it. With this conversation that we are having here,

          6  you are making me feel like engaging and sponsoring

          7  this bill and be passionate about it. At that point

          8  I am getting now.

          9                 And let me explain to you where it is

         10  that I am getting there. You said that the way to

         11  determine who is a contractor, have a lot to do with

         12  determined responsibility (sic). And you also said

         13  that responsibility is something that had to do with

         14  something close to morality, in many ways ethics,

         15  and it has been over and over again in this country

         16  an idea or belief that gay, lesbian, transgender

         17  people are immoral, they don't need to be protected,

         18  they don't need to be taken care of, they don't need

         19  to be equal under the law. And when you start

         20  talking about declaring somebody responsible or

         21  non-responsible as a contractor, I want to ask you a

         22  point clear question:

         23                 Does the Administration think that a

         24  contractor that discriminates against people who are

         25  gay, lesbian, transgendered, or non-citizens, that
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          2  that is a responsible act? Do you consider that is

          3  responsible and a reason to deny a contract to

          4  somebody?

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: Especially given the

          6  laws of the City of New York, I would think that is

          7  not a responsible act, such a contractor would not

          8  be responsible.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I was not

         10  asking you in the context of laws. I am asking you

         11  in the context of what you were describing about

         12  defining responsibility or irresponsibility, how the

         13  contracts are given.  When you say non-responsible

         14  contract, has the Mayor of the City seen that a

         15  non-responsible contractor is one who does not hire

         16  people in base of being gay, lesbian, transgender?

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: Discrimination? I think

         18  you have to consider laws and other policies, and

         19  discrimination is something that the City clearly in

         20  all of its policies does not approve of.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am asking

         22  specifically in the case of the gay and lesbian,

         23  transgender community, because you mentioned people

         24  who are involved with the Mob. People who are

         25  involved with that know that they have business,
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          2  they have friendship with them, the Administration

          3  consider to cancel contracts for people like that,

          4  and it is not illegal to have a friendship with the

          5  Mop, you said that. Therefore it is not an illegal

          6  act to have a friendship with a mafiosa, but for the

          7  City Administration, to cancel a contract with

          8  somebody who has a friendship with a mafiosa is

          9  right because that individual particular contractor

         10  show non-responsible status.

         11                 I am asking you now, a contractor, in

         12  the opinion of the City Administration, who show

         13  that they do not like to hire or they discriminate

         14  or they don't prefer or they don't like gay,

         15  lesbian, transgender people, if the Administration

         16  will consider that a non-responsible contractor.

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: It would be adverse

         18  information regarding a contractor that would,

         19  unless explain, could lead to a non-responsibility

         20  finding.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am fascinated

         22  by what you just said, because you said very

         23  categorically, very categorically, if the contractor

         24  has an association with a mafioso, it is not illegal

         25  to have a relationship with a mafiosa, but we would
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          2  not consider that particular organization a

          3  responsible organization to give a contract. Those

          4  people, in my understanding, who are mafiosa, do a

          5  lot of illegal things, including killing people. And

          6  you are telling me that in that case you are willing

          7  to consider not to give a contract to those people

          8  who are there, discriminating against lesbian and

          9  transgender, you cannot be categoric about it here?

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: I may have spoken too

         11  blankedly. If you are quoting me correctly, which I

         12  am not sure you are, I may have spoken in two

         13  sweeping terms regarding the organized crime

         14  association, we do have contracts, contractors where

         15  principals of associations with organized crime

         16  figures --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can't you be

         18  more blankeded about that you wouldn't do business

         19  with other types, the discriminatory companies that

         20  the Council Member is referencing?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I mean, why

         22  can't you be categoric as you were before? Why not?

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't think we should

         24  ever speak as -- if I did speak as sweepingly as you

         25  suggest, I don't think we should ever do that. I
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          2  think you want to consider all of the evidence

          3  whenever you know something about someone that is

          4  adverse.

          5                 So, for example, if a corporation had

          6  a principal that discriminated against someone, or a

          7  corporation had a principal who associated with an

          8  organized crime figure, you would want to find out

          9  all of the information. Did they fire that

         10  individual? The discriminatory individual. Did they

         11  create, did they put in an employment program or

         12  other sorts of changes, you would want to consider

         13  all of those things. But is discrimination an

         14  adverse, adverse information with respect to

         15  responsibility? Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, my next

         17  question is, I have been listening to you and you

         18  keep saying that this bill doesn't do nothing. Then

         19  what is wrong with spelling something? What is wrong

         20  with saying clearly in paper that this

         21  Administration and this City and this City Council

         22  and this City of ours will not tolerate

         23  discrimination against anyone, including gay and

         24  lesbian transgender people. What is wrong with that?

         25  This isn't going to do nothing. It isn't going to
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          2  cost you a penny, it is going to do nothing. Then

          3  what is wrong?

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: There is nothing wrong

          5  with saying that. We have said it over and over

          6  again.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then why not

          8  put it in writing? Why not to pass this bill?

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: It is in writing.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Where? If it is

         11  in writing, where?

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: It is in Executive Order

         13  50. In every single one of our contracts.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if it is

         15  in there, then why not put it here too? It will be

         16  just a reinforcement. It will not be a

         17  contradiction. It will be a reinforcement. It will

         18  be an accentuation, like, you know, with the Spanish

         19  with accents, something like that to make it more

         20  strong.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: It is also in Title

         22  VIII, but the problem is, as I said before, when you

         23  start tinkering with these things you may end up

         24  with things, consequences you don't like.

         25                 For example, as I mentioned before,
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          2  you could have some bizarre, but unpleasant court

          3  rulings and they are not that uncommon really, that

          4  end up saying, for instance the Long Island example

          5  that was offered before, sorry, we can no longer

          6  refuse to do business with the Long Island company

          7  that discriminates because of this statute.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Can I just

          9  follow up on that?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Andrew, go ahead.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Very, very

         12  quickly, and maybe we will move on to some other

         13  witnesses, I will leave it to the Chair's discretion

         14  of course, but you have been on the firing line for

         15  awhile now.

         16                 On the basis of what you have

         17  testified today, it seems to me like we ought to be

         18  working toward including a little language to deal

         19  with the hypothetical situations that you outline. I

         20  mean, we could do something like nothing herein

         21  should be construed to limit the City's authority to

         22  compel, no, to find a bidder non-responsible under

         23  any provision of law, or be construed to compel a

         24  finding of non-responsibility pursuant to law.

         25                 In other words, we can eliminate your
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          2  two objections quite clearly, I think, by adding a

          3  little bit of language. Now, if we do that and we

          4  also take out the requirement that we include all of

          5  these materials and solicitation documents or these

          6  provisions and solicitation documents, are we

          7  getting closer to something you could at least live

          8  with?

          9                 All we are left with as a substantive

         10  objection in that case, if I understand it

         11  correctly, is the extra lawyer work stuff.

         12                 MR. MILLMAN: I am assuming that

         13  language could be -- you know, that the language

         14  would work, but that is what you end up with, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. Well,

         16  without committing you to supporting it or not

         17  supporting or whatever, would you be willing to sit

         18  down with our attorneys and work up some language

         19  that specifically addresses the two problems that

         20  you raised as potential hypothetical problems? I am

         21  not trying to force you into a box and put you in a

         22  position where you have to support this, but you

         23  know, in good faith I think we need to have a

         24  discussion about this so that we can both be

         25  comfortable that we wouldn't be doing that.
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: We are looking for a

          3  representative from Legislative Affairs as to what I

          4  am willing to do.

          5                 I am usually willing to talk to most

          6  people, so --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. Well,

          8  I am going to assume that that is a yes.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: We are always willing to

         10  talk.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Without

         12  compelling any commitment on anyone's part, okay?

         13  Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Since we are

         15  putting out possible points of discussion let me ask

         16  you another one.

         17                 What if we were to change the bill

         18  and have it say, you know, the failure to have a

         19  sexual orientation, alienage and citizenship

         20  non-discrimination clause in a company's EEO

         21  statement makes a contractor ineligible to do

         22  business with the City of New York. And what if we

         23  then added that if the company failed to offer

         24  domestic partnership benefits it would make them

         25  ineligible, would you consider either of those ideas
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          2  in the same vain that you are going to consider the

          3  ideas put forward by Council Member Eristoff?

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: I have no -- that is

          5  different than anything that is in the bill, so

          6  obviously we would have to go back and look at it.

          7                 However --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Even the first

          9  one you think is different? Set aside domestic

         10  partnership for a second, because if a company has

         11  that in their EEO statement, and it certainly sends

         12  a message about that commitment, the company's

         13  commitment to Human Rights laws, and, you know,

         14  morality or whatever word you used earlier.

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: Right. There are two

         16  elements of that issue. There are contracting issues

         17  there, and then there are substantive issues. I can

         18  certainly -- I can't talk to the substantive issues

         19  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Contracting

         21  issues must be substantive. We have a whole office

         22  on it.

         23                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't know how

         24  substantive my life is these days.

         25                 However, in terms of the procurement
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          2  process, the kind of issue I have with it, in terms

          3  of my job is to get the contracts out the door,

          4  okay? And the problem, the reg flag that that rings

          5  for me is, we are trying to do some contract really

          6  quickly, we are about to sign the contract,

          7  everything is wonderful and then suddenly we find

          8  out X company doesn't have that in their policy. To

          9  put the policy in, you are going to need a vote of

         10  their Board of Directors, it's a vacation --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You could have

         12  it in the beginning.

         13                 MR. MILLMAN: What?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You could have

         15  it in the beginning of the process.

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: As a contract

         17  deliverable, from a contracting point of view, I

         18  wouldn't want to make it a prerequisite contract. It

         19  might be more acceptable from a procurement point of

         20  view. It can make it as a deliverable afterwards or

         21  later, that kind of thing, or possible that it be

         22  later.

         23                 Do you understand what I am saying?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I do. But as I

         25  recall filing responses to RFUs when I was at the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Anti-Violence Project, there were a lot of things

          3  that one had to put in the beginning, including our

          4  personnel policies manual. So, I guess my assumption

          5  would be that, you know, at the Anti-Violence

          6  Project we had to put that in there, that it was

          7  getting reviewed and the content of it mattered. So,

          8  I agree with you that it would be foolhardy to put

          9  it at the end of the process because then, you know,

         10  you could almost be done and have to start all over.

         11  So, I guess I am not clear why then it wouldn't

         12  become one of those, you know, you well know in HRA

         13  you hand in a proposal and there is a list and like

         14  if you don't have these eight things, you get

         15  chucked in the garbage, they won't even look at you

         16  if you don't have these eight things. HRA doesn't

         17  like staples, they like paperclips, you know,

         18  whatever. So why couldn't that be on that list of

         19  eight or ten or whatever it is, with different

         20  agencies?

         21                 Do you know what I mean?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: All I am saying from a

         23  contracting point of view is, I don't like anything

         24  that actually holds us up moving the contract

         25  forward. All that paperwork, basically what you are
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          2  describing is the paper you had to submit to DLS for

          3  DLS approval --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, no, no, to

          5  the agency in the beginning.

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: I think they will submit

          7  it to DLS.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But they won't

          9  even read it when they open up my sealed envelope

         10  where I have written my name over the piece of tape

         11  on the large manila envelope with the package, not

         12  including staples on the inside, they, on the top,

         13  will have that list of things I must have, then they

         14  will pick it up. If those eight things aren't there,

         15  the list of Board of Directors, the list of yadda

         16  yadda yadda, they chuck it.

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: What you are describing

         18  is --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So they don't

         20  even read it. It could be the greatest in the world.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: This is the stuff that

         22  we are trying to get rid of in the solicitation

         23  process, and didn't you hate all of that stuff?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, I didn't.

         25  Because I think it is important that the City of New
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          2  York knows the make-up of the Board of Directors, I

          3  think it is important that they see our personnel

          4  policies, I think it is important that they see a

          5  most recent audit. Yes, it is a pain in the neck to

          6  Xerox it and I actually thought, I must say, you

          7  know, that you had to see the corporate seal, I

          8  wasn't quite sure what the point of that was, but

          9  most of them were substantive documents that spoke

         10  to the effectiveness and integrity of the

         11  organization.

         12                 So, what we are going to eliminate

         13  from that process is something that I think, myself,

         14  the chair and the Committee would like to further

         15  discuss with you.

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: All I am saying is that

         17  from a procurement point of view, it is better that

         18  you not ask for documents from companies before you

         19  decide to do business with them. What you want to do

         20  is, you want to get sort of the core information,

         21  like what are they going to do for you, what is

         22  their price, et cetera.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Whether they

         24  discriminate. That's a core bit of information.

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: It certainly is very
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          2  important, however -- the first decision you are

          3  trying to make is who generally, you know, what is

          4  their substantive approach to this particular

          5  problem, what is their price. Then after that,

          6  before you enter into a contract with them, you want

          7  to check out, is there anything bad about their

          8  integrity that I need to deal with.

          9                 If there are problems, you want to

         10  make the system flexible enough so that you can move

         11  the procurement forward and deal with the problem

         12  later, assuming that the contractor is willing to

         13  deal with it.

         14                 For example, let's say there was an

         15  EEO policy that you wanted and they didn't have it

         16  yet, and they said I can't give it to you today, but

         17  I am willing to give you in writing that I will have

         18  it in 30 days. Then you would want to be able to

         19  move forward with that contract. And all I am saying

         20  is that, please, when you write these, the

         21  legislation dealing with contracts, that you think

         22  about the process and the effect that it is going to

         23  have on someone who is waiting for funding, who is

         24  willing to go along with everything we want, but is

         25  waiting for funding but for some bureaucratic
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          2  hold-up.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I don't think

          4  this issue of whether or not people are following a

          5  Human Rights position is bureaucratical. That is my

          6  final point to make.

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: It can be under limited

          8  circumstances, which I described.

          9                 For example, the contractor says we

         10  didn't have that in our employment policy, we have

         11  never discriminated against anybody, take a look at

         12  our records, we are thrilled to put it in, we think

         13  it is a great change, we can have it in in 30 days

         14  but our Board of Directors can't meet, can you give

         15  us the funds and we promise it is going to be in

         16  there and we will make that promise to you in

         17  writing. All I am saying is once you get to that

         18  level, it's a bureaucratic hold-up.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Margarita.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: For the purpose

         22  of the record, Madame Chair, may I have permission

         23  to join this legislation as a sponsor?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, because we

          3  really have to move on, but I am trying to get one

          4  thing down. The actual process of if someone

          5  discriminates, how it gets from the Human Rights

          6  Commission, you said they actually have access to

          7  VENDEX and they enter it into VENDEX?

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: When there is a

          9  complaint to the Human Rights Commission, those

         10  complaints are entered into the VENDEX system.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: By the Human

         12  Rights Commission?

         13                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes. We type everything

         14  in.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: By whom?

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: The Mayor's Office of

         17  Contracts receives information and types it in.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So, the Human

         19  Rights Commission notifies you every time there is a

         20  complaint against a contractor with the City of New

         21  York?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: I am told most of it is

         23  coming in through VENDEX.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But how does it

         25  get into VENDEX is what I am asking?
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: Most of it is coming in

          3  through the VENDEX questionnaires.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The VENDEX

          5  questionnaire that who fills out?

          6                 MR. MILLMAN: The Vendor. However, we

          7  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: You are asking a

          9  vendor to say, oh, yes, I discriminated?

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: We are asking the vendor

         11  to say there was an administrative complaint against

         12  them which would include a human rights complaint.

         13                 So, for example --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: That is why I said

         15  before, because you know and I know that a lot of

         16  times they say oops, I forgot.

         17                 MR. MILLMAN: They do. However --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: That's like the

         19  fox watching the chicken coop.

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: One thing I suspect we

         21  will now be putting in, because we now have all of

         22  these --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And when does that

         24  come in? Once they bid, after the contract, when

         25  does that get entered into?
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          2                 MR. MILLMAN: The VENDEX

          3  questionnaire? The VENDEX questionnaire comes in --

          4  well, the current way, though we are now changing

          5  this, the current way it comes in is when you bid,

          6  usually you send in a VENDEX questionnaire; however,

          7  we are now shifting to a system where anyone who is

          8  interested in doing business is going to be sending

          9  their VENDEX questionnaire and it will be on time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And what if there

         11  is a change? What if somewhere along the line there

         12  is a complaint, the contract has been awarded, they

         13  are out there and they are discriminating, then what

         14  happens?

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: Under the new system

         16  that we are implementing --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, now and the

         18  new system, how does it work?

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: Under the current system

         20  you have to file, every time you bid again you have

         21  to file an affidavit of no change. An affidavit of

         22  no change or a change VENDEX questionnaire. Under

         23  the new system our VENDEX questionnaires are going

         24  to say that you have to report a change, I think

         25  within ten days or something like that. So if there
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          2  was a complaint, you would have to write us and tell

          3  us about it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Wait a minute. You

          5  are not dealing with the actual act of

          6  discrimination, when someone comes forward to say I

          7  am being discriminated against.

          8                 MR. MILLMAN: I am sorry?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: For instance,

         10  under the bill basically someone says I am being

         11  discriminated against, they file a complaint with

         12  the Human Rights Commission. The Human Rights

         13  Commission hears that. Meanwhile, what happens with

         14  the contractor? How does he get from one point to

         15  the other point? And who makes that decision?

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: The bill is very

         17  limited. All the bill deals with is --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: What happens now?

         19  Don't tell me about the bill, tell me about what

         20  happens.

         21                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: How do you get --

         23  how does someone who files a discrimination

         24  complaint against someone who contracts with the

         25  City, how does that person get action so that the
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          2  actual act of discrimination stops?

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: When a person files a

          4  complaint -- I am trying to understand the question,

          5  I am sorry.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: You are out there,

          7  you work for someone who is contracting with the

          8  City. You feel and you can prove -- and one of the

          9  problems I am concerned about, because you said they

         10  only file if there was a complaint to Human Rights

         11  Commission, at least the bill says you have to be

         12  found that there actually was discrimination -- but

         13  how does that person who says I am being

         14  discriminated against, I am going to the City

         15  Commission on Human Rights to file under this; how

         16  does that person get redress immediately from the

         17  person who is contracting with the City of New York?

         18  How do you get them to change their practices then

         19  and there?

         20                 MR. MILLMAN: There are two separate

         21  issues that I see in that question, if I understand

         22  it correctly. You are asking how does the victim get

         23  redress, right?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And when?

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: And when.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because if they

          3  don't want to wait until --

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: There are two separate

          5  issues. They have filed a complaint with the Human

          6  Rights Commission, under your hypothetical, right?

          7  And that is going to go through the process that the

          8  Human Rights Commission follows, right?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: And there is a separate

         11  issue that I think you are asking about which is how

         12  do we make sure that the City agency that has a

         13  contract with that vendor is accounting for that

         14  information.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, I want to

         16  know how you stop the discrimination.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I mean, the

         18  individual who is getting the contract is

         19  benefitting from dollars of the City on a consistent

         20  basis and there is a file in there that said that

         21  this individual's company has violated the rights of

         22  this human being, and they continue to have the

         23  contract; that is what you are saying?

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: No. No, no. That has

         25  never happened. Never happened.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then explain

          3  how is it that this is addressed? Explain how the

          4  case that the Chairwoman mentioned happened.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Wait a minute. No

          6  one has ever filed an action against the City?

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: Why is it not happening?

          8  Is that the question?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No. The

         10  question is --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: You mean no

         12  contractor with the City has ever discriminated

         13  against anyone?

         14                 MR. MILLMAN: No, none of our current

         15  contractors has had a finding upheld by the Human

         16  Rights Commission in the past six years where the

         17  finding concerned a City contract. In fact, we

         18  didn't find any where it even didn't concern a City

         19  contract.

         20                 The premise of the bill, the bill

         21  talks about a finding by the Human Rights Commission

         22  concerning a City contract, none of our current

         23  contractors have such a finding against them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, I hope not.

         25                 MR. MILLMAN: Not one.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But what I was

          3  asking about was the process itself.

          4                 MR. MILLMAN: The process works is the

          5  point.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Whatever it is.

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: The process, it is many

          8  different processes, and maybe that is why it works.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, that is why

         10  just once we want to tell people don't get confused.

         11                 We had asked the Human Rights

         12  Commissioner, by the way, to come in and talk to us

         13  today, but I don't see anyone representing them

         14  here.

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: We have spoken to the

         16  Human Rights Commission and they looked over our

         17  testimony.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         19                 And the other thing, the last

         20  question, the other thing that I am concerned about

         21  is it also sounded like when you were talking about

         22  responsible bidders and the ACCO makes that

         23  decision, if the ACCO looks at a contractor and

         24  looks at a pattern or practices of alleged

         25  discrimination, does the ACCO make that decision,
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          2  saying that they are discriminating?

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: If the Agency Chief

          4  Contracting Officer -- the Agency Chief Contracting

          5  Officer looks for any adverse information about the

          6  contractor. One type of information the Agency Chief

          7  Contracting Officer might see is a determination by

          8  the Human Rights Commission against --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Oh. That is the

         10  first time you said a determination.

         11                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: You have been

         13  saying complaints and that was making me very

         14  nervous.

         15                 MR. MILLMAN: That is what we mainly

         16  have in our VENDEX system.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So the ACCO is not

         18  the one who makes the determination that someone is

         19  being discriminatory, because that is not within

         20  their venue. I presume that has to come from the

         21  Human Rights Commission, right?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: Right. For instance,

         23  sometimes what we will do is we will write -- we see

         24  a whole lot of complaints against a particular

         25  contractor in the VENDEX system, okay? We write to
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          2  the contractor and say, gee, that looks like a lot

          3  of complaints, can you explain what is going on. And

          4  the contractor will send back a letter to the Agency

          5  Chief Contracting Officer saying there were this

          6  many complaints, this is the status of each of them,

          7  we don't think we did wrong in any of them, here is

          8  what the information is. And if it all seems

          9  reasonable, then the Agency Chief Contracting

         10  Officer might say we will go forward,

         11  notwithstanding the fact there are pending

         12  unresolved complaints.

         13                 My point is that obviously if there

         14  is an adverse determination, that is a whole

         15  different ball game. You might want to consider

         16  complaints.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: What happens if

         18  there is an adverse determination?

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: If there is a

         20  determination against you --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: You as the ACCO?

         22                 MR. MILLMAN: Yes, the agency chief

         23  contractor would write to --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And does the Human

         25  Rights Commission automatically inform an ACCO that
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          2  they have made a -- you know, an adverse finding or

          3  a finding of discrimination, does that automatically

          4  happen now?

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: Well, I don't believe it

          6  has, however, we are now going to --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am not asking

          8  that.

          9                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: If it were to

         11  happen, how do we get from point A to point B? And

         12  who does it?

         13                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay, I think DLS would

         14  get that information.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: From whom?

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: I suspect from the

         17  Commission and from the Vendor or both. The Vendor

         18  should also be reporting on VENDEX, and we now have,

         19  our office which enters the information in VENDEX

         20  now has all of the determinations which we will

         21  enter into VENDEX.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And they got that

         23  from the Human Rights Commission.

         24                 MR. MILLMAN: We got that from Human

         25  Rights.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: And that will be in

          4  VENDEX.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And if they want

          6  to --

          7                 MR. MILLMAN: That should be in

          8  VENDEX.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Then what happens?

         10                 MR. MILLMAN: When a determination is

         11  discovered?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There is a

         13  determination, Human Rights says okay we made this

         14  determination about X contractor is discriminating

         15  against Y group.

         16                 MR. MILLMAN: Okay, if things are

         17  operating the way they should, then what would

         18  happen is that the Agency Chief Contracting Officer

         19  would write to the contractor and say I found out

         20  some adverse information about you, the contractor,

         21  please address it. And give the contractor some sort

         22  of opportunity to explain.

         23                 Now, you then have to read the

         24  answer. Let's say the answer is, yes, we

         25  discriminated, and we are going to keep
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          2  discriminating against people.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Which everyone is

          4  going to say, of course.

          5                 MR. MILLMAN: I don't think that is

          6  too common, but let's suppose that were the answer,

          7  then probably you would want to find them

          8  non-responsible based on that.

          9                 If, on the other hand, they said,

         10  they gave some reasonable explanation, then you

         11  might want to say something else. Basically you have

         12  to take it on a case-by-case basis. Just like we do

         13  -- it is not just human rights violations that are

         14  dealt with this way. If the Chief Financial Officer

         15  is convicted of fraud, then you would write to the

         16  contractor and say, please explain why I should

         17  continue to do business with you and the answer

         18  might be we hired the Chief Financial Officer,

         19  brought in an accountant and have completely cleaned

         20  up our shop and if you were persuaded by that then

         21  you would find them responsible.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right.

         23                 When there is a finding, the Human

         24  Rights Commission says that you discriminated, the

         25  ACCO says we found you non-responsible, then what
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          2  happens? What is the immediate impact?

          3                 MR. MILLMAN: If the Agency Chief

          4  Contracting Officer finds you not responsible, okay,

          5  there are two possibilities. If the Agency Chief

          6  Contracting Officer finds that there is a need for

          7  speed on the procurement, which is more than not the

          8  case, then you award to someone else and basically

          9  the vendor loses that contact but has a right to

         10  appeal to the agency head and the City Chief

         11  Procurement Officer and then go to court.

         12                 If on the other hand, there is no

         13  need for speed, then that appellate process, that

         14  review process happens while the contract, while the

         15  procurement is being held up.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         17                 Any more questions? Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. MILLMAN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The next witness

         21  is Andrew Berman from State Senator Tom Duane's

         22  Office.

         23                 Thank you. Would you raise your right

         24  hand, please.

         25                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the
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          2  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          3                 MR. BERMAN: I do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, state your

          5  name and position for the record, and please

          6  proceed.

          7                 MR. BERMAN: Sure.

          8                 My name is Andrew Berman, I am the

          9  Chief of Staff to State Senator Tom Duane. Tom is in

         10  Albany, he sends his regards. I will deliver his

         11  testimony for him.

         12                 Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.

         13  I want to thank you for the opportunity to testify

         14  here today regarding Intro. 165. I would like to

         15  thank my former colleague, Council Member Andrew

         16  Eristoff, for all of his work in bringing this

         17  significant piece of legislation to fruition, as

         18  well as Council Member Kathryn Freed, the Chair of

         19  the Contracts Committee, and I would also like to

         20  thank Council Member Christine Quinn who has done a

         21  lot of work around publicizing this important bill.

         22                 As a member of the City Council, I

         23  was the prime sponsor of Intro. 165 and would like

         24  to state my continued strong support for its passage

         25  and implementation.
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          2                 Intro. 165 would strengthen and

          3  clarify New York City law and policy forbidding

          4  discrimination by contractors and subcontractors who

          5  do business with the City of New York in the

          6  execution of those contracts.

          7                 It would ensure that such

          8  prohibitions include discrimination on the basis of

          9  sexual orientation, alienage and citizenship by

         10  contractors and subcontractors who are providing

         11  services or materials to the City of New York.

         12                 New York City law does already

         13  clearly outlaw discrimination on these bases and

         14  therefore an employee who is working on a City

         15  contract in the City of New York is currently

         16  protected from this form of discrimination.

         17                 However, this bill would allow an

         18  employee working outside of New York City on a

         19  contract for the City to prove a claim of

         20  discrimination on one or more of these bases. Under

         21  this bill, a proven claim by an employee inside or

         22  outside of the City would result in a termination of

         23  the employer's contract with the City of New York,

         24  and I understand we will be fine-tuning some of

         25  those provisions.
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          2                 This would clearly be a significant

          3  step forward in efforts to ensure that the City of

          4  New York is consistent and thorough in its

          5  commitment to eliminate discriminatory practices

          6  wherever it can. Particularly with the amendments

          7  and adjustments which I understand are being

          8  considered by the legislation's sponsors, which

          9  would, among other things, allow a private right of

         10  action for an aggrieved party to pursue a claim and

         11  a finding of discrimination, I believe that this

         12  legislation would be an effective tool in protecting

         13  individuals from discrimination, particularly those

         14  who are covered by City Human Rights law but not by

         15  state law, federal law or Executive Order 50, and I

         16  think the issue of the lack of protection outside of

         17  the City of New York was raised here at the hearing

         18  and I think the lack of complete knowledge of that

         19  issue I think speaks to the necessity of this bill.

         20                 There is no reason why any fairminded

         21  contractor or subcontractor who wishes not to

         22  discriminate in their employment practices would not

         23  be able to abide by the terms of this legislation

         24  and maintain their contract or subcontract with the

         25  City of New York.
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          2                 Intro. 165 would merely ensure that

          3  those contractors and subcontractors who do

          4  discriminate are not given the opportunity to do so

          5  in the provision of goods or services paid for by

          6  the City of New York.

          7                 The claim which some have made that

          8  such a regulation is anti-business portrays a lack

          9  of commitment to ending discrimination and the claim

         10  that it is unduly burdensome shows an unwillingness

         11  to work with the sponsors of this bill to, if

         12  necessary, fine-tune the legislation to ensure that

         13  it is laudable and very realistic goals are reached.

         14  Hopefully this hearing has gone somewhat of the way

         15  towards correcting that problem.

         16                 I hope that arguments such as these

         17  which do not really hold water will not deter your

         18  efforts or impede progress on this bill in any way.

         19                 Lastly, I hope that we will use this

         20  opportunity to continue to pursue an end to other

         21  forms of discrimination which are still allowed in

         22  the City's contracting and subcontracting process.

         23                 Intro. 465, which I drafted and

         24  introduced last year, would in a manner similar to

         25  Intro. 165, prohibit contractors and subcontractors
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          2  from discriminating in the provision of benefits to

          3  their employees on the basis of domestic partnership

          4  status.

          5                 Intro. 165, the bill before you

          6  today, is needed in order to extend protection from

          7  discrimination already in place in New York City to

          8  employees working on City contracts outside of the

          9  City, among other things it would accomplish.

         10                 However, because City law does not

         11  and cannot require equal provision of domestic

         12  partner benefits by private businesses to their

         13  employees, Intro. 465 is necessary to end domestic

         14  partner benefits discrimination in the execution of

         15  City contracts and subcontracts for workers both in

         16  New York City and outside of the City.

         17                 While the enforceability of such

         18  legislation was recently upheld in federal court,

         19  this important area of workplace equality remains

         20  unaddressed by City law.

         21                 I know that all of the prime sponsors

         22  of Intro. 165 are also sponsors of Intro. 465, and I

         23  urge that we use the opportunity of the hearing on

         24  this bill and the important issues which it raises

         25  to bring forward legislation forbidding
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          2  discrimination based on domestic partners status in

          3  the performance of city contracts as well.

          4                 Thank you again to all of my former

          5  colleagues for their hard work on Intro. 165, and I

          6  again strongly urge its passage.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. And let

          8  me just reiterate from the press conference this

          9  morning, that I am now the prime sponsor on 465, and

         10  we are very interested in moving that along, but of

         11  course that has not been assigned to the Contracts

         12  Committee, it is in Gov Ops.

         13                 So, we are hoping to get it back. We

         14  are also hoping that Intro. 165 will lay the

         15  groundwork to go forward on that.

         16                 Are there any questions?

         17                 Okay, thank you very much.

         18                 I am going to call the next panel. A

         19  panel of the next four groups. Maureen Moran, from

         20  the Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project. Carlie

         21  Steed, from the Lesbian and Gay Community Service

         22  Center. Brendan Fay, from Dignity New York and

         23  Lavender and Green, and Paula Ettelbrick, from the

         24  Empire State Pride Agenda.

         25                 If you all just want to come up and
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          2  sit around the table. I will swear you in first. I

          3  thought we would make it easier this way for

          4  everybody.

          5                 Before you start, if everyone would

          6  raise their right hands, please.

          7                 And do you swear to tell the truth,

          8  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MS. STEED: Yes.

         10                 MS. MORAN: Yes.

         11                 MS. ETTELBRICK: Yes.

         12                 MR. FAY: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Please

         14  proceed. As you testify, state your name and your

         15  organization that you are testifying on behalf of.

         16                 MS. MORAN: My name is Maureen Moran,

         17  and I am testifying on behalf of Richard Hames who

         18  could not be here today, and I am from the New York

         19  City Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project.

         20                 Thank you, Council Member Freed, and

         21  all the other Council members from the Contracts

         22  Committee, for inviting New York City Gay and

         23  Lesbian Anti-Violence Project to speak at today's

         24  hearing.

         25                 This is the middle of Gay Pride
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          2  Month, which celebrates the 30th Anniversary of the

          3  Stone Wall Riots, the beginning of the Modern Gay

          4  Rights Movement. Therefore, it seems only fitting to

          5  be holding these hearings at this time on

          6  legislation would enhance New York City's Human

          7  Rights law.

          8                 Council Member Eristoff's Intro. 165

          9  will supersede all existing labor laws,

         10  administrative codes, executive orders, as well as

         11  the Americans With Disabilities Act, to further

         12  eliminate discrimination against individuals on the

         13  basis of age, race, creed, color, national origin,

         14  gender, disability, marital status, sexual

         15  orientation, alienage or citizenship.

         16                 Intro. 165 will ensure that all

         17  businesses contracting with the City, and most

         18  subcontractors, will no longer be allowed to

         19  discriminate any individual when the discrimination

         20  is directly related to a City contract. It is a bill

         21  that will hurt violating businesses at their most

         22  vulnerable spot, in their pocketbook.

         23                 Under Intro. 165, businesses

         24  contracting with the City, in essence, businesses

         25  being funded or subsidized without tax dollars will
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          2  no longer be allowed to discriminate in the areas of

          3  employment, apprentice training, public

          4  accommodation, housing, sale, rental or leasing of

          5  land or commercial space, lending practices and

          6  membership in real estate multiple listing services.

          7                 At the Anti-Violence Project, we

          8  absolutely understand the nature of hate crime

          9  against the lesbian, gay, transgender and bisexual

         10  community. This legislation is geared to ameliorate

         11  one aspect of that hatred, denial of our basic civil

         12  rights, and level the playing field of fairness for

         13  all citizens.

         14                 These are rights that most citizens

         15  now take for granted, and yet are still denied the

         16  lgtb and other communities here in New York City.

         17                 Thirty years after the Stonewall

         18  Riots, while the climate in the City may feel better

         19  for many gay people than it did in 1969, our gains

         20  have been mostly in the realm of public opinion,

         21  this legislation notwithstanding, we have not really

         22  gained much legislatively. We are not protected and

         23  we are under attack. We are not recognized or

         24  protected by the federal government, other than to

         25  voluntarily collect bias crime statistics when we

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  are brutally victimized. New York State's Sexual

          3  Orientation Non-Discrimination Act is still not law

          4  after 29 years of attempts. We have no hate crimes

          5  legislation and our relationships and families are

          6  left unprotected as well.

          7                 And in New York City, even Executive

          8  Order 50 was overturned by the New York State Court

          9  of Appeals in regard to protection based on sexual

         10  orientation.

         11                 So, although we have gained

         12  relatively little on the federal and state level, it

         13  is very encouraging to see yet another demonstration

         14  of the support we receive on the local level with

         15  respect to fairness, safety and equal protection for

         16  our communities.

         17                 So, here we sit in June 1999, Gay

         18  Pride Month, on the cusp of the new millennium, and

         19  we are once again looking to the New York City

         20  Council to do the right thing for all of its

         21  citizens.

         22                 Please pass Intro. 165. Contractors

         23  benefitting from our tax dollars need to understand

         24  the importance of treating all communities in New

         25  York City with fairness. They owe us that. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. And by

          4  the way, we are continuing to try and work out the

          5  problems with ADP's contracts.

          6                 Next.

          7                 MS. ETTELBRICK: Good afternoon. My

          8  name is Paula Ettelbrick, I am Legislative Counsel

          9  with the Empire State Pride Agenda. I, too, also

         10  want to thank Council Member Freed for inviting us

         11  to testify, to Council Member Eristoff for his

         12  leadership in introducing this bill, and to Council

         13  Member Quinn for her sponsorship as well, which was

         14  not apparent to me when I had the copy of the bill.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 Intro. 165 doesn't necessarily chart

         17  for us new ground in the City of New York. The City

         18  has long been committed to holding itself, those

         19  within the City and those with whom the City does

         20  business to conducting business in a fair and

         21  non-discriminatory manner.

         22                 Intro. 165 is however an essential

         23  piece of legislation whose primary utility lies in

         24  clarifying a sometimes confusing web of current laws

         25  and executive orders related to human rights law
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          2  obligations of businesses and services holding

          3  contracts with the City of New York.

          4                 On behalf of a lesbian, gay, bisexual

          5  and transgender residents, workers and citizens of

          6  the City of New York, the Pride Agenda fully

          7  supports Intro. 165 and advocates for its swift

          8  passage by the City Council and support from the

          9  Mayor.

         10                 There are two specific reasons why

         11  the Pride Agenda so strongly supports this measure.

         12  First, this bill would codify, clarify and unify the

         13  City's existing laws and executive orders that hold

         14  those who do business with the City to the same

         15  clear standard of non-discrimination to which the

         16  City holds itself.

         17                 The bill requires that those who

         18  contract with the City explicitly promises a

         19  provision of a contract not to discriminate in

         20  hiring, providing services or goods or any other

         21  function on the basis of age, race, creed, color,

         22  national origin, gender, disability, marital status,

         23  orientation, alienage and citizenship.

         24                 Should they fail in this duty, Intro.

         25  165 allows the City to treat the discrimination as a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  material breach of contract and as a basis for

          3  determination that the contractor is a

          4  non-responsible bidder as to all future contracts.

          5  This requirement and remedy would apply to

          6  subcontractors as well.

          7                 Through these requirements the City

          8  further secures the economic and personal well-being

          9  of the citizens, residents and those who contribute

         10  their skills to the City.

         11                 Second, and of specific importance in

         12  concern to the lesbian, gay, bisexual and

         13  transgender community, Intro. 165 clearly resolves

         14  an outstanding question as to whether current law

         15  includes a mandate that contractors not discriminate

         16  on the basis of sexual orientation.

         17                 While EO 50 on its face includes

         18  sexual orientation as one of the bases upon which

         19  the contractors may not discriminate, that portion

         20  of the executive order was struck down by the New

         21  York Court of Appeals in 1985, under the case called

         22  Under 21 versus the City of New York.

         23                 The Court's sole reason for striking

         24  such an orientation from EO 50 was its view that

         25  because the City Council had not at that point
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          2  included sexual orientation in the Human Rights law,

          3  that then Mayor Koch had exceeded his mayoral

          4  authority in reaching out to prohibit any entity

          5  other than the City from discriminating on the basis

          6  of sexual orientation.

          7                 The Council's subsequent passage of

          8  the lesbian and gay civil rights bill in 1986 has

          9  always been treated as the cure to the court's

         10  ruling, nonetheless, Intro. 165 would

         11  incontrovertibly resolve this question and clearly

         12  recommit the City to banning all contractors from

         13  discriminating on the basis of sexual orientation.

         14                 I want to speak not only in the next

         15  part, because I have some suggestions in terms of

         16  amendments in other areas to be addressed in this

         17  bill, not only as legislative counsel for the Pride

         18  Agenda, but also in a prior capacity in which in the

         19  years after passage of what was known as the gay

         20  civil rights bill in 1986, I was the legal director

         21  at Legal Defense and actually engaged and brought

         22  suit on behalf of many individuals in the Human

         23  Rights Commission, have some experience in working

         24  with the Commission. It is old, it was awhile ago,

         25  but I have a feeling not much has changed.
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          2                 So, I want to parenthetically say

          3  some of my concerns here as well. Not concerns about

          4  the bill, but ways it can be strengthened.

          5                 First of all, Intro. 165 should

          6  clarify, as we have already discussed I think, the

          7  procedure by which the Human Rights Commission will

          8  convey and will be required to convey, any findings

          9  of discrimination by a City contractor to the

         10  appropriate City agency or agencies empowered to

         11  take action against a contractor for its breach of

         12  contract, and I would add to my written testimony

         13  also to notify the complainant as to where the

         14  findings have been to refer to. Because one of the

         15  difficulties in operating within any City agency,

         16  because it is such a very large City, is the

         17  complainant gets lost in the process. They don't

         18  know how to follow up, we as advocates don't know

         19  how to follow up, it is hard to follow the bouncing

         20  ball as it may move from agency to agency.

         21                 So, in addition to requiring a clear

         22  procedure for reporting, also a requirement that

         23  when it is reported, that the complainant receive

         24  that notification with specificity.

         25                 Second, since the Human Rights law
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          2  allows for private right of action in State Court

          3  for violation of the law, the non-compliance section

          4  of this bill, of Intro. 165, should be amended to

          5  allow either a finding of discrimination by the

          6  Human Rights Commission, or by a court of competent

          7  jurisdiction, in order to trigger not only the

          8  City's response to the material breach of contract,

          9  but also the requirement of reporting a court's

         10  finding to the appropriate agency.

         11                 Right now you could have somebody go

         12  into State Court, file their claim, successfully win

         13  their lawsuit, but the effect of 165 isn't triggered

         14  in that way because there was no finding by the

         15  Human Rights Commission. That provision of the law

         16  needs to be fixed as well.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It is just

         18  interesting how you are able to -- it seems to be

         19  some of what Mr. Millman was alluding to, but I just

         20  want to thank you for cutting immediately to a very

         21  clear and basic solution.

         22                 MS. ETTELBRICK: Any time. Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: City government

         24  was unable to help with that.

         25                 MS. ETTELBRICK: It is my mission in
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          2  life.

          3                 Third, the bill should clarify the

          4  fact, it was already brought up in prior discussions

          5  today, that the Human Rights Commission or any court

          6  with jurisdiction over the Human Rights law must

          7  have jurisdiction to take complaints against

          8  contractors whose businesses are located outside the

          9  City of New York, which you, Council Member Quinn,

         10  have raised as well.

         11                 Right now any contractor within the

         12  City is already liable under the Human Rights law,

         13  in the capacity as an employer, public

         14  accommodation, a landlord, you know, the provision

         15  of services or whatever.

         16                 What is unclear yet is, and what

         17  could be clarified in this bill, is that this also

         18  was meant to reach out to contractors whose business

         19  is located outside of the City of New York, but

         20  whose work under the contract is clearly done within

         21  the City of New York, where they are hiring people

         22  within the City of New York, or not hiring, as the

         23  case may be.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         25                 MS. ETTELBRICK: And it is my view
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          2  that something should be explicitly added to the

          3  bill to make sure that that jurisdiction is clear so

          4  it is not left to question or a negative court

          5  interpretation, as was feared by the Administration.

          6                 And then, finally, I would just say

          7  that one of the things that I think is important,

          8  especially for the lesbian, gay, bisexual and

          9  transgender community, is the clarity of process and

         10  procedures and the accountability to the people who

         11  have been discriminated against.

         12                 We forget sometimes that the Human

         13  Rights Commission is not set up as a City agency to

         14  do the City's work necessarily, it is meant to

         15  enforce the law, but it is meant to be precisely the

         16  kind of agency that people can go to with real

         17  complaints of discrimination and expect a response.

         18                 Sometimes people get lost in those

         19  agencies, I can't tell you how many times after the

         20  Gay Rights Bill was passed in 1986 I had to

         21  accompany people downtown to the Human Rights

         22  Commission to tell them, yes, the law does now

         23  include sexual orientation, you can take these

         24  complaints, because they were given the run-around.

         25                 Finally, I will say that the
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          2  importance of this too, and I caution the City

          3  Council again to backing down from any request or

          4  negotiation that might go on that would require

          5  dropping back on, or backing down on codification of

          6  the EO 50.

          7                 One of the things that I think is

          8  most important is that when law is law, it appear in

          9  the codified portions of the law. Executive orders

         10  have very, very important means of moving the City

         11  towards a place we want to move, but eventually it

         12  needs to be codified, it needs to be in a clear,

         13  public document that people can find.

         14                 Most people go to the Human Rights

         15  Commission precisely because you don't need to hire

         16  a lawyer, you don't need -- if you just lost your

         17  job, you don't have money to hire a lawyer. And if

         18  they can't find these myriad of laws, you know,

         19  around, you know, that are placed in different

         20  portions of City law, it makes it very difficult for

         21  them to actually enforce their rights under City

         22  law.

         23                 The codification such as this will

         24  make it clear that somebody can go to the municipal

         25  code, they can find Title VIII that deals with all
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          2  of the human rights violations they can find this

          3  section now that deals with contractors. They are

          4  consistent, they are clear, they operate under the

          5  same set of rules and principles.

          6                 I thank you again very much for the

          7  opportunity to testify today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          9                 Next.

         10                 MR. FAY: Good afternoon. I also would

         11  like to join in thanking you for the opportunity to

         12  testify this afternoon, and I would like to express

         13  my gratitude to Council Member Eristoff, Council

         14  Member Freed, Council Member Christine Quinn,

         15  Council Member Margarita Lopez, newly joined

         16  co-sponsor, and also those who have worked

         17  previously on this, including Senator Thomas Duane.

         18                 I think this is a very, very

         19  important bill and I come here as an Irish

         20  immigrant, a gay man, who is also Catholic, and who

         21  has experience and had some personal experience of

         22  discrimination in the workplace in this City on the

         23  basis of sexual orientation. So, I feel very

         24  strongly and personally passionate about this issue.

         25                 The bill, Intro. 165, would require
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          2  any contractor who does business with the City to

          3  comply with the City's Human Rights law. It would

          4  also ensure the codification of Executive Order 50,

          5  and also add alienage, citizenship, sexual

          6  orientation to protected classes from

          7  discrimination. And the codification as I now have

          8  come to understand is important in terms of future

          9  administrations that this important legislation to

         10  ensure protection and future protection for those

         11  and whatever change might take place in City Hall.

         12  So, I am really here to support that.

         13                 Also, I suppose I had no idea of what

         14  it was like really to experience discrimination in

         15  the workplace, now when I look back on that

         16  horrendous experience, and not really knowing where

         17  to turn -- I want you to know as well, not being a

         18  citizen, I really did not feel that I had any

         19  protection. Now, sort of because I have become

         20  involved in the community, lesbian, gay,

         21  transgender, bisexual community, I found I was there

         22  to turn for help, but really there were weeks when I

         23  went through a whole experience of not knowing where

         24  I could turn. So, I think the discussion also this

         25  afternoon of the need for clarification, on one hand
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          2  certainly for the contractors, but also for the

          3  victims and the workers, that there is a

          4  clarification and a sense of knowing where to turn

          5  for remedy or redress, and end an experience of

          6  discrimination.

          7                 Also, I think the whole idea of being

          8  able to turn with confidence to an agency and to

          9  trust that one will find a sympathetic hearing and

         10  understanding person, it is quite a model for any of

         11  us, but certainly from the victim's point of view,

         12  it can be quite a nightmare, as many of us know.

         13                 I am grateful that I was indeed, and

         14  despite actually the objections and suggestions of

         15  some persons, I happen to be working in a Catholic

         16  school. Nonetheless, I felt I would at least be able

         17  to go and find a sympathetic hearing, and that was

         18  very important for me, to work my way through the

         19  process. And in the end we were, both the school

         20  that had hired me, and I as a victim of

         21  discrimination, were able to reach a resolution,

         22  which I believe in fact was good for all of us in

         23  some way, and the school in fact changed some way

         24  its policy and complied with some requirements of

         25  the Human Rights Commission, I am happy to say, and
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          2  that is very, very important.

          3                 Also, I want to say here, I am very

          4  grateful for that moment and that experience that I

          5  was able in the City to find an agency that I could

          6  go to and that is so important.

          7                 I am also conscious, though, of those

          8  over the years that I have come to know, who

          9  continue today as we speak here, 30 years after

         10  Stonewall, Gay Pride, there are so many persons in

         11  the City, whom I know some personally, who are

         12  petrified of being found out, that they are lesbian,

         13  gay, transgender and so on. There really are so

         14  many.

         15                 I know immigrants to this City who

         16  are petrified of being found out and who live with,

         17  sort of on a day-to-day basis, discrimination in the

         18  workplace.

         19                 So, I think this is very important

         20  legislation, and a very significant bill.

         21                 Also, I am happy that there is

         22  consideration being given to amending the bill to

         23  ensure that any discrimination by contractors or a

         24  company is considered, you know, not whether simply

         25  that discrimination takes place within the City
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          2  boundaries itself, but also outside. Maybe being

          3  Irish, being Catholic, I am thinking in terms of

          4  previous legislation or a message that has been sent

          5  from New York City government, such as the McBride

          6  Principles, which I know are constantly written

          7  about and spoken about in corporate offices in

          8  Northern Ireland. It really sends a tremendous

          9  message, and really has more significance than is

         10  maybe being thought about here in the Chambers, that

         11  you really can have a tremendous impact. And

         12  certainly from the victim's point of view that is a

         13  very important message.

         14                 So, as far away, whether it is in

         15  Belfast, and certainly I know during years of

         16  discrimination in South Africa, New York City

         17  government also sends a message to Johannesburg so

         18  let's not even feel that, and you know, sort of a

         19  message can't be sent from this Council Chamber

         20  whose effect can be felt beyond these very City

         21  boundaries, and not only to the contractors who are

         22  considering doing business with the City, which I

         23  think is not good working policy good business

         24  policy also? That is good. It is good for workers,

         25  it is good for business, it is good for the City.
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          2  Intro. 165 it is a win/win for everybody and that is

          3  why, again, I sort of feel passionate about its

          4  passage.

          5                 And lastly, I just want to say that

          6  Intro. 165 also affords an opportunity for the City

          7  to send to send a very clear message that basically

          8  New York City does not do business with bigots. That

          9  is the simple message I think. And also New York

         10  City seeks to ensure fair play in the City, in the

         11  workplace, and also to join in the voices of all of

         12  those, whether here in the City, whether in Belfast

         13  or Johannesburg, who really are concerned and who

         14  are committed to ensuring justice in the workplace

         15  for all workers, and thus holding contractors to a

         16  standard of policy that would ensure fairness and

         17  equality in the workplace wherever that may be. It

         18  also, Intro. 165, I think represents a step in the

         19  right direction for victims of discrimination in the

         20  workplace, and sends a message that they indeed are

         21  represented also in these Council Chambers and can

         22  also find redress and remedy in this City. And

         23  again, I thank you all for your sincere commitment

         24  to our human rights concerns in the work place. I

         25  really appreciate that.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          4                 Next.

          5                 MS. STEEN: Good afternoon, Madame

          6  Chair, and members of this Committee. I am here to

          7  speak in support of Intro. 165. My name is Carlie

          8  Steen, and I am a Public Policy Associate and an

          9  attorney with the Lesbian and Gay Community Service

         10  Center. A 16-year-old institution, the Center serves

         11  more than 5,000 people per week, and is home to more

         12  than 300 groups, as well as 29 programs.

         13                 We are the second largest center of

         14  our kind out of almost 100 centers throughout the

         15  country. Current legislation does not adequately

         16  protect individuals from discrimination by

         17  contractors and subcontractors. We believe,

         18  obviously, that discrimination is wrong, period. The

         19  current laws are not sufficient. This proposed bill

         20  extends beyond existing laws and protections, this

         21  expansion is essential. For this reason, the Center

         22  supports Intro. No. 165.

         23                 I do have two concerns about the bill

         24  as proposed. One I shared with Council Member Freed;

         25  and that is, that individuals must in some way be
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          2  made aware of this law in order for it to most

          3  effectively exercise its protections.

          4                 Second, a law with no sincere backing

          5  is not a protection against discrimination. The City

          6  must make a strong statement that discrimination of

          7  any kind is wrong.

          8                 For contractors to take this law

          9  seriously, any enforcement agency must be provided

         10  with direct support and resources necessary -- the

         11  direction, the support and resources necessary to

         12  ensure that the City takes a position against

         13  discrimination that is clear and unequivocal.

         14                 Preventing discrimination is not a

         15  bureaucratic delay, it is the right thing to do. We

         16  don't have to choose between so-called bureaucratic

         17  efficiency and preventing discrimination. We simply

         18  have to do the right thing.

         19                 Intro. No. 165 is beneficial to New

         20  York City. Extending protection to individuals that

         21  are in most cases already part of some type of

         22  protection, this proposed law is not making new

         23  policy, rather it is filling in gaps and providing

         24  clear support to what already exists.

         25                 Finally, I would like to say that I
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          2  have more faith in our courts than the Mayor's

          3  Office of Contracts. I really believe that if any of

          4  these cases were to reach the court system, the

          5  court would follow both the letter and spirit of the

          6  law.

          7                 The Lesbian and Gay Community

          8  Services Center opposes all forms of bigotry and

          9  hate. Intro. No. 165 will make a strong statement to

         10  the country and to the City of New York's opposition

         11  to intolerance and ignorance, as a part of our

         12  continuing struggle to overcome bias against the

         13  lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender community.

         14  The Lesbian and Gay Community Services Center

         15  supports Intro. No. 165.

         16                 Thank you for your time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. As I

         18  said before, another one of those bills that I am

         19  the prime sponsor of, which should require posting

         20  in all the appropriate places, including employment

         21  agencies and housing accommodations, et cetera, et

         22  cetera. And when we last had the hearing, the City

         23  Commission on Human Rights came in and opposing it

         24  because it would just be another one of those things

         25  in the wall that would take up space. However, and
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          2  do nothing, of course, and would probably somehow

          3  delay business and cause lawsuits and cause the

          4  courts and all of the agencies to do their jobs, but

          5  we are going to be moving on that too.

          6                 Thank you very much, all of you, for

          7  testifying.

          8                 And the last witness that we have

          9  here is Martin Bowe. Is he still here? No, he had to

         10  leave. Okay.

         11                 Anyone else feel compelled? Okay, and

         12  we would like to recognize the representative from

         13  Congressman Jerry Nadler's Office here. Okay, thank

         14  you very much, and this meeting is adjourned.

         15                 (The following testimony was read

         16  into the record.)

         17                 Testimony of:

         18  Deborah J. Glick

         19  Assemblymember 66th District

         20  New York County

         21

         22                 I want to express my strong support

         23  for Intro. 165, legislation which requires anyone

         24  who does business with the City of New York to abide

         25  by the City's Human Rights law.
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          2                 Currently, Executive Order 50

          3  prohibits contractors who do business with the City

          4  from committing any discriminatory practices on the

          5  basis of age, race, religion, color, national

          6  origin, gender, disability and marital status.

          7  However, it does not include protections on the

          8  basis of sexual orientation, alienage and

          9  citizenship.

         10                 Intro. 165 will codify Executive

         11  Order 50 and add sexual orientation, alienage and

         12  citizenship to the list of protected classes. Any

         13  findings by the New York City Human Rights

         14  Commission that a contractor has violated the Human

         15  rights law would allow the City to nullify the

         16  contract and could prevent any future contracts from

         17  being made with that contractor.

         18                 As the City and its government

         19  agencies are governed by the Human Rights law, it is

         20  a logical next step to expand protections to those

         21  contracted to work for the City. This is a

         22  reasonable way in which the City can provide a wider

         23  umbrella of protection for people who live and/or

         24  work in the Metropolitan area.

         25                 I want to applaud all of the sponsors
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          2  of the legislation and urge the City Council to

          3  rapidly adopt this measure.

          4                 (End of written testimony.)

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:20 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 14th day of June 1999.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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